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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of C-MER
Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) is pleased to
announce the annual consolidated results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017, together with the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

FIERBEELERERAR (XA NES
([BE)g([EE® ) MAEHEARRRE
M AR (i AEE])EZE2017F12A31
AIFFENEFLREEE  EREZE2016F
12A31MBIEFEMLEREFTIT -

TEMBEREMBLERDY
EE &

Year ended 31 December

Revenue Wk
Gross profit EF

Profit for the year FRHHE
Adjusted net profit for the yearV&@ & R4 FHEHFEHOR

EFI% (%)
SEHIE 2 (%)
(B F R (90) 05

Gross profit margin (%)
Net profit margin (%)
Adjusted net profit margin (%)"M&2

Notes:

(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses from the net
profit for the year.

(2) This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that
is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs and is
therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a
measurement of the Group’s financial performance under HKFRSs and
should not be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any
other performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the
Group's liquidity.

LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since
15 January 2018 (the “Listing Date"”) following completion of
the global offering (the “Global Offering”) of 226,550,000 new
shares issued by the Company (the “Shares”). The amount of
net proceeds from the Global Offering is HK$609.8 million. Such
amount of net proceeds, as well as the corresponding increase
in the number of Shares in issue, are not included in the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased
to report to all shareholders of the Company the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

This is the first annual report of the Group since its Listing on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 January 2018.

ACHIEVING THE MILESTONES

In 2018, the Group has commenced a new chapter in the history
of its development. The Group has been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since the middle of January 2018
and gained access to the international capital markets. | would like
to express my sincere appreciation to our investors for their trust
in our management team throughout the process of the Listing
and Global Offering and casting a vote of confidence in the future
development prospects of the Group. This has paved the way
for the successful completion of and positive feedback from the
investment market for the Group's initial public offering.

The management team has been encouraged by the satisfying
results presented in the Group’s first annual report to its investors
following the Listing. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the revenue of the Group amounted to HK$311.2 million,
representing an increase of 25.2% as compared with HK$248.7
million during the year ended 31 December 2016. The adjusted
net profit for the year grew significantly with an increase of 37.1%
to HK$64.3 million (2016: HK$46.9 million).

During the year, driven by the increasing demand for quality
medical services in the target markets of the Group, the Group
has recorded considerable growth, especially in the Group’'s PRC
business operations.

The business operations of the Group in Hong Kong continued to
be the major revenue contributor to the Group generating a stable
cash inflow with a revenue increase of 17.6% to HK$189.5 million
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group established
the fourth Satellite Clinics in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong in
February 2017, and the Mongkok Surgery Centre has commenced
business operations since December 2017. In addition, the fifth
Satellite Clinic of the Group was open in Kwun Tong in March
2018. The Group has established a strong service network in
different districts in Hong Kong.

IR;E

AAEBREADRREZTEMARAAAZEE
IR R MALEERET2017F12A31HILFEE
HYF R °

M AREBE B HMN201851 A16 B EEH R
ARGIABRAR ETUARNEDER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHE

On the other hand, the business operations in the PRC continue
to grow. With the well-established reputation of quality ophthalmic
services that the Group has provided in Shenzhen, the eye
hospital in Shenzhen recorded an increase in revenue of 39.1% to
HK$121.8 million during the year ended 31 December 2017. Our
eye hospital in Beijing has commenced business since January
2018.

LOOKING FORWARD THE BRIGHT FUTURE

Following the Listing, the Group will continue to develop the
business reach in Hong Kong and the PRC. The development
of the PRC market is very encouraging. In addition to the stable
economic growth in the Group, the implementation of the
favourable industry policies, the development of the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Big Bay Area (B8 X #[&) and the increasing
urbanisation and living standards of the middle-class population
in the PRC are expected to stimulate the demand for high quality
ophthalmic services. The Group is well prepared to take up the
ample business opportunities by implementing the following
strategies:

Establish or acquire eye hospitals, eye centre and
clinics in Hong Kong and selected PRC cities including
cities in Eastern China, Southwest or Central China
and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Big Bay Area.
Leveraging the Group’s experience in Hong Kong and Shenzhen,
the Group will further expand the service network in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Directors believe that the Group can draw on
the successful experience in Shenzhen to expand the service
network in other selected PRC cities where the demand for
high quality ophthalmic services is substantial. Currently, the
Group plans to expand into other selected PRC cities that have
similar demographic features and medical resources as Beijing
and Shenzhen, by either setting up new hospitals or acquiring
operating eye hospitals, eye centres or clinics when suitable
opportunities arise.

6 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED #HIERAEEERARATE

F—HE RPBEOEBEERFELER - R
EAEERRYIRMEE ZRBIARIS AT
MRGFEE  REZE2017F12A318I1LF
B ARYIRBIER WIS R39.1%£121.8
BEBIT - ZARIERHRERIZRE H2018
F1ARFAIREE -

REEERRK

EHE - ARESEERRNEETHEN
EEhRE - PETSNERATSREAD
BAREZERSIERSI - BHETTEMEFIEK
R BREBRNERE - PEME(ERT
ERANER - pn bR ERERAEEKT AERS
FEHIL P ERRES A REHSEZREY
RIENFTER - AKECFFHE - BREE
AT SRS 1R IR SRR PO -

EEBRTEEEHD (BEER - &
Bl E R E AR AR EBR
REEBHT)RLIWBRAER - R
PR o

BREAEEERTELRYINESR  AEES
HE—FEAEFE LT ENREER - EFR
& REETMBERYIOKINEER - R
BB ERESERRRREFTRLERF
BHEAMEEM™ o BAT - NEEFEIART
MEBRKEEER KRB L ETNRYE
Br - REIPORZ AT AREAFH
IR EORYIFELLE A QR BN B R AR
BIE AR E T



D

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Improve the operational capacity and service
capability.

The Group will continue to devote the efforts to maintain the high
service standards and strive to give our clients quality ophthalmic
services. The Group will continue to invest in advanced medical
equipment and information technology infrastructure to enhance
the quality and efficiency of the medical practice and to ensure
that our clients are provided with the most appropriate ophthalmic
treatment and services when visiting our eye centre, eye
hospitals and Satellite Clinics. In particular, we will purchase
additional state-of-the-art equipment and enhance the information
technology system for upgrading the management information
and security systems for our clients’ records.

Identify suitable strategic partners for collaboration.
The Group will explore opportunities for strategic partnerships,
alliances and investment opportunities in order to extend the
network into the regions and markets where the Group currently
does not have any business presence.

The year of 2018 will be the first year of business operations
following the Listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. | believe that the Group will be able to leverage on its
strengths and the increased corporate profile and transparency as
a Hong Kong listed company to continue to expand the business
in Hong Kong, the PRC and other markets that have potential
demand for high quality ophthalmic services. Our corporate vision
is to serve our clients with ophthalmic services of international
standards, and patient-focused and caring medical services.

Last but not the least, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my deep gratitude to all members of the Board and our
International Advisory Board, our business partners and our
colleagues for their contribution and dedicated efforts to the
continuous business development of the Group.

Chairman
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
28 March 2018, Hong Kong
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, we generated 60.9%
(2016: 64.8%) of our revenue in Hong Kong and 39.1% (2016:
35.2%) in the PRC. We experienced a rapid growth during the year
ended 31 December 2017, generating total revenue of HK$311.2
million (2016: HK$248.7 million) for the year ended 31 December
2017, representing an increase of 25.2% from last year. In
particular, the revenue of the PRC operations also recorded an
increase of 39.1% during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Following the year ended 31 December 2017, our business
continued to grow. Our eye hospital in Beijing has commenced
business operations since January 2018 and our fifth satellite
clinic in Hong Kong has commenced business operations in March
2018.

Gross profit margin increased to 43.5% (2016: 38.2%) during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the amount of gross
profit increased by 42.6% to HK$135.4 million, primarily due to
economies of scale of the Group both in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 decreased by
14.4% to HK$40.1 million, primarily due to (a) the expenses
relating to the Listing in the amount of HK$24.2 million charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and (b) the
pre-opening operating expenses of HK$6.4 million incurred by the
eye hospital in Beijing. These two factors affect the amount of the
net profit during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Excluding listing expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017, the adjusted net profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$64.3 million, representing an
increase of 37.1% from the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

We are an ophthalmic service provider in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Our ophthalmologists/physicians are specialised in the
fields of cataract, glaucoma, strabismus and refractive surgeries
and external eye diseases. Our revenue is derived from our fees
charged to our clients on consultation and other medical services,
and surgeries as well as the sales of vision aid products, including
glasses and lens. The following table sets forth our revenue for
the years indicated as a percentage of total revenue:

R ESE

B ¥ ol R

W z8

B —REREE K&+ BERRB AR fe it
e HPMRMEEERAAE AR -
PR S E T R R R IR A » HAFTHI
HRERDIE - HEERBEFliRER
WER ) A R S5 48 0 6 B (ANAR 88 K
HhH) o TREIIBRPINATREEZ UG
BWEADEL

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Provision of ophthalmic services 124tERRIARS 291,076 93.5 234,391 94.3
Sales of vision aid products SHEMS NEBE & 20,152 6.5 14,268 5.7
Total BET 311,228 100.0 248,659 100.0

Our revenue was generated from Hong Kong and the PRC.
In Hong Kong, our service network included our eye centre in
Central and four satellite eye clinics. In the PRC, our eye hospital
is located in Shenzhen. The following table sets forth our revenue
according to geographical markets as a percentage of total
revenue:

HFIMEREEELTE - HAEFEDN
RIEABE SRR PN PR —RERF O
RURREHEEZ M - HAEDEORRE
Befz R o TREHI PR IBUIZ T 58]
DHWEFTIE R T DL

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B8LEE
2017 2016
20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTExT T
Hong Kong BB 189,507 60.9 161,168 64.8
PRC Hh 121,721 39.1 87,491 35.2
Total 45 311,228 100.0 248,659 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Our total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2017
represented an increase of 25.2% as compared with our
total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2016. In
addition to the increase in the sales of visual aid products by
41.2%, the increase was primarily driven by the increase in the
revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic services
to HK$291.1 million during the year ended 31 December 2017
from HK$234.4 million during the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of 24.2%, because of the increase in
the number of surgeries performed by us and the number of
our ophthalmologists/physicians in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The revenue generated from our business operations in Hong
Kong accounted for 60.9% of our total revenue, represented a
slight decrease from 64.8% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2016, primarily because of the increase in revenue of
the PRC of 39.1% for the year ended 31 December 2017 which
was at a faster pace than that of Hong Kong of 17.6%.

Provision of ophthalmic services

Our revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic
services may be broadly divided into two categories, namely (1)
consultation and other medical service fees and (2) surgery fees.
The following table sets forth our revenue by categories for the
years indicated as a percentage of total revenue generated from
the provision of ophthalmic services:

RAREZE2017F12 A31 B IEFE B
BEZE2016912 A31 B IEFE MRS
’25.2% ° B N BB E i B 15 N41.2%
SN BREERERIEHEBRIRSEERK
HHEE2016F 12 A31 B IEFEH234.45H
EBATIEREEHE2017F12A31 B IEFED
291 1EEABTT « I8 A24.2%  £HRNEM
EITHFME B RBEMRESRH B RR
BEAEABUGIMATE - AMEBEBKEEE
R AR B MR U E/)60.9% + BRELE 2016
F12A31BIEFENCLBUMEM TS » T2
EHATEREEZ2017F1283MBILEE
39.1% By Uz 4% SR BB H B 17.6% K 1L SR BT
gy o

FRRR R IR

HAIK B ERHER B AR HO Wk AT KB B
B2 ekEMEEREERQ)TFTM
B o TREIARFEILRERE 50U
IERERB RS ASENER DL

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2017 2016
20164F
HK$'000

THT

20174
HK$'000 %
FHBxT

Consultation and other medical 24 RH{thEE

service fees fRs %
~ Hong Kong e 64,251 22.1 52,263 223
-PRC — 49,284 16.9 36,703 15.7
113,535 39.0 88,966 38.0
Surgery fees FirE
~ Hong Kong . 123,871 425 107,602 45.9
- PRC — = 53,670 18.5 37,823 16.1
Total @t 291,076 100.0 234,391 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The ophthalmic services provided by us are focused on surgeries
for the treatment of not only cataract, glaucoma and strabismus,
but also eye diseases, including corneal and vitreoretinal diseases.
Generally speaking, ophthalmic services are outpatient or day-care
procedures, performed under local anaesthesia. Hence, unlike
other hospitals, clinics or nursing homes, we are not constrained
by bed capacity and do not focus on providing large inpatient
facilities at our eye centres/hospitals or clinics.

The following table sets forth the total surgery fees, the total
number of surgeries performed by us and the average fee per
surgery:

For Hong Kong B

Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FivEEBE(FHET)
Number of surgeries performed by us  FAfI#ETHF T H
Average surgery fee (HK$) S FME(BIT)
For PRC &

Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FivEEE(FHET)
Number of surgeries performed by us AT F T H
Average surgery fee (HK$) S FME(BIT)

R ESE

BARENRMREEINEEARRE - &
SR MR F AR AR - I BRER
RAERBRRE - —RMF - REIRK A
PR AREERRE - BITRBMME o Bt
TRREMER: - 2 EER - B
REUBRERS - FIEBENEMOREH
L/ B2 AR AR E R R -

TR FMEERE - RIVETHOFMARK
REOIFMOFHER

Year ended 31 December

HEZ128318LLFEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
123,871 107,602
3,205 3,062
38,649 35,141
53,670 37,823
3,865 2,730
13,886 13,855

In Hong Kong, both the average surgery fee and the surgery
volume increased during the year ended 31 December 2017
as a result of the increasing number of complicated surgeries
performed by us and the increasing number of our Hong Kong
Ophthalmologists during the same period.

In the PRC, the average surgery fee was stable during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the number of surgeries increased
by 41.6% to 3,865 during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Sales of vision aid products

We also generate revenue from the sales of vision aid products
including glasses and lens. The sales were conducted by us
through the assessment of the optometrists employed by us in
Hong Kong and the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2017, our revenue generated from the sales of vision aid products
amounted to HK$20.2 million, representing an increase of 41.2%
from last year.

EBE - AREMINE — AT RE
Frpe EARESREIEE AZIE M - iR
FHFME R FMBEEREZE2017F12A31
BIEFEHBRTEM -

EHRE - REZE2017F12A31 B IEFEFY
FhrBEHIET - MRNEZE2017F12A318
IFFEETHFMHEEIN41.6% £3,865
Bl o

HEEHHHER

BT ER N EBER(NRERER)
PERE - RIFEBRES KT EREAK
BIRMA T E - REIZE2017F12 A
JINELEFE BIRAHEERNEHERD
W A2028 BB - B EFIEMA1.2% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Cost of revenue

The following table sets forth an analysis of our cost of revenue
for the years indicated, both in terms of Hong Kong dollars and as
a percentage of total revenue:

HEMAE
TREINFPINFREERHERA(GAE
TUARAE BRI B 2 LSRR D AT -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2017 AONNG)
20174 20164

% to % to

HK$°000 revenue HK$'000 revenue

e il Es

FET B THT Epalsd

Doctors’ consultation fees BEYS 68,535 22.0 64,580 26.0
Cost of inventories and FEMFEM AR

consumables 39,773 12.8 31,437 12.6

Staff salaries and allowance BT #e MoRBh 32,270 104 28,864 11.6

Rent and rates e hEm 17,257 5.5 16,522 6.6

Others Hib 17,962 5.8 12,280 5.0

Total et 175,797 56.5 153,683 61.8

Our cost of revenue increased by 14.4% from HK$153.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to HK$175.8 million for
the year 31 December 2017, primarily as a result of (i) an increase
in the doctors’ consultation fees of HK$4.0 million primarily
payable to our Hong Kong Ophthalmologists and (i) an increase
in cost of inventories and consumables of HK$8.3 million. These
increases were primarily due to an increase in the demand for
our ophthalmic services. Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, employee benefit expenses and rental expenses were
relatively stable.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit
margin according to geographical markets for the years indicated:

B HEERABREE2016F12A318IEF
[E®)1653.78 BATIER14.4% ZH £2017
F12A31HIEFEMI758EESBL =2
EHRNENEEZS  TEAEFRBE
EEBEDEIENNA0EESITT  RiFER
FEMAAIE NS IEEBT - ZRFENES
EHREHEMBRRRIEHTHSIE M - ¥
¥ MELREBIE EERMFAILES
BERAHRSETE

EFMRERR

TREFIR AR F R E TS89 8
EFREME :

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164

HK$’000 % HK$'000

FHxT Botk FHIT
Hong Kong BB 66,722 35.2 50,093 31.1
PRC & 68,709 56.4 44,883 51.3
Total Bt 135,431 435 94,976 38.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The amount of gross profit during the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$135.4 million, representing an increase of
42.6% from HK$95.0 million during the year ended 31 December
2016. Our gross profit margin was 43.5% during the year ended
31 December 2017, as compared with 38.2% during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The gross profit margin for our
business operations in the PRC recorded a significant increase to
56.5% from 51.3% primarily due to the economy of scale. The
gross profit margin for our business operations in Hong Kong also
recorded an improvement to 35.2% from 31.1% primarily due to
the increase in our fee levels and enhanced operational efficiency.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased by 43.0% from HK$7.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to HK$11.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to an increase
in promotional expenses in the PRC. The amount of selling
expenses, as a percentage of our total revenue, slightly increased
from 3.2% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 3.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The fees paid to online platforms
represented the major component of our selling expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our total administrative expenses during the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$67.8 million, consisting of listing
expenses amounted to HK$24.2 million and other administrative
expenses amounted to HK$43.6 million.

The other administrative expenses had an increase of 42.7%
as compared with HK$30.5 million during the year ended 31
December 2016. The increase in our other administrative
expenses during the year was primarily driven by the increase in
our staff salaries and allowance as a result of business expansion,
especially for the new eye hospital in Beijing, and the increase in
rent and rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, we incurred HK$24.2
million as the listing expenses.

Other income

Our other income during the year ended 31 December 2017
increased to HK$2.4 million from HK$1.5 million during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The increase was primarily due to the
increase in the interest income and miscellaneous income.

R ESE

HE2017F12A31BILEENENEE A
1354 B &AETT - BB E2016512A31H 1k
FEMB.0EBATIERA2.6% ° EE2017
F12ANBIEFERMOENER43.5%
MEZE2016F12A31HIEFE A382% °
BMPEEBHCEHEFNEREESRNBIER -
E51.3%EREL6.5% @ = BRENBER
fE - ERBMMBBERLE  EFIEINER
BigR - B311%ERE35.2% * TEBEMH
REAPIRUR B K F RS RS SRR -

SHEMX
BFREEMIAEE2016F12A31H 1t
FEM7IBBEITLERIB0%EHZE2017
F12A31ALFENNIEES T TE2
RN BEEE RGN - HERA S
HEBEMBUREHNE DL - AEE2016F12
A31AIEFEEMN32%EM ik HEEHZE
2017512 A3 B IEFEM3.6% - B4 L
FEMmBREHRMESEAZHIRES -

THREX

BN EZ2017F12 A31 B L FE T
SR AR6TSEBEAIL B LMY 24.2
BEBTREAMITHRAZ43.6EEET

HEA T S E2016512 831 IEFfE
30.65AEBITIEINA2.7% ° MNAFEEMIT
BEASTHENEEZIRMOEIFS E
BAEBEE (CESI TNFREIER) U
KA k=G INFTEEE) o

REE2017F12A3MBIEEE - BfIES L
MEBR2A2B8E8ET -

Hipgr A

B EMIA BEZE20165F12A831H IEF
ER5EERITIENEHZ2017F12A31
AIEFEM2ABEBT - BEENINEERA
AT B B AETE U A LG ANET L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Other gains, net

Our other gains, net during the year ended 31 December 2017
decreased to HK$0.2 million from HK$1.5 million during the year
ended 31 December 2016 due to the exchanges losses during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Finance expenses

Our finance expenses decreased from HK$0.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to HK$0.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, primarily because of the repayment of bank
loans.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense during the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$18.4 million, representing an increase by
56.8% from HK$11.7 million during the year ended 31 December
2016. The significant increase was primarily due to the increase of
the adjusted profit before tax (adding listing expenses).

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 decreased by 14.4% to HK$40.1 million due to
the listing expenses incurred amounted to HK$24.2 million and
the pre-opening operating expenses of the eye hospital in Beijing
before its commerce of operations amounted to HK$6.4 million.

After adding listing expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017, the adjusted net profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, amounted to HK$64.3 million, representing an
increase of 37.1% from the year ended 31 December 2016. Our
adjusted net profit margin (adding listing expenses) increased to
20.7% for the year ended 31 December 2017 from 18.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2016, primarily due to the growth of
our business which enabled us to achieve enhanced operational
efficiency.

Events after the balance sheet date

Pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 13 December
2017, conditional on the share premium account of the Company
being credited as a result of the Listing, the directors were
authorised to issue a total of 802,628,735 shares by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$80,262,874 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company upon the Listing.
Such capitalisation issue has been completed on 15 January 2018.

On 15 January 2018, the Shares of the Company were listed on
the Stock Exchange. In connection with the Listing, the Company
issued 197,000,000 shares at a price of HK$2.9 each for a gross
proceed of HK$571,300,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the International Underwriting Agreement dated 11
January 2018, the Company granted the over-allotment option to
China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the international
underwriter of the global offering, in its discretion to require the
Company to allot and issue up to 29,550,000 additional shares.
The over-allotment option was fully exercised on 18 January 2018
and the Company issued a total of 29,550,000 additional Shares at
a price of HK$2.9 each for a total gross proceed of HK$85,695,000
at the closing date on 29 January 2018.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

The Directors believe that the Group will have its competitive
strengths following the Listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
as one of the leading and internationally recognised ophthalmic
service providers in Hong Kong and the PRC. As stated in the
in the Company’s prospectus dated 29 December 2017 (the
“Prospectus”), in addition to the national economic growth in the
PRC, the implementation of the favorable policies to the medical
industry in the PRC, the development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Big Bay Area (&8 KX/&[&) and the increasing
urbanisation and living standards of the middle-class population
in the PRC are expected to stimulate the demand for high-quality
ophthalmic services. The Group is prepared to the business
opportunity by implementing the following strategies:

Establish or acquire eye hospitals, eye centre and clinics in
Hong Kong and selected PRC cities including cities in Eastern
China, Southwest or Central China and the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Big Bay Area.

Leveraging our experience in Hong Kong and Shenzhen, we
intend to further increase our penetration in Hong Kong and
the PRC. We believe we can draw on our experience in having
successfully established and achieving profitable operation at
Shenzhen C-MER Eye Hospital to expand further into selected
PRC cities where the demand and growth potential for ophthalmic
services is substantial. Currently, we intend to expand into other
selected PRC cities that have similar demographic features and
medical resources as Beijing and Shenzhen, by either setting up
new hospitals or acquiring operating hospitals, centres or clinics
when desirable opportunities arise.

Improve our operational capacity and service capability.

We will continue to dedicate our efforts to maintaining our
high service standards and strive to give our clients quality
ophthalmic services. We will continue to invest in advanced
medical equipment and information technology infrastructure to
enhance the quality and efficiency of our practice and to ensure
our clients are provided with the most appropriate treatment.
We will purchase additional LASIK equipment and enhance the
information technology system for upgrading the document
management systems for our patient records and the related
information technology systems.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Identify suitable strategic partners for collaboration.

We may explore opportunities for strategic partnerships, alliances
and investment opportunities in order to extend our network into
the regions and markets where we do not have a presence.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our liquidity requirements are primarily attributable to our working
capital for our business operations. Our principal sources of
liquidity are cash generated from our business operations. As at
31 December 2017, we had cash and bank balances of HK$78.0
million.

The current ratio (calculated as current assets over current
liabilities) was 1.46 times as at 31 December 2017 compared with
1.34 times as at 31 December 2016.

Net cash generated from operating activities was HK$65.5 million
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$53.5 million).
The increase was mainly attributed to increase in cash generated
from operations during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$89.9
million during the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to
HK$13.8 million during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Group invested approximately HK$62.4 million for purchase of
property, plant and equipment mainly in connection with the new
eye hospital in Beijing.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to HK$41.2 million, as
compared to net cash used in financing activities amounted
to HK$3.0 million during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The cash inflow from financing activities for the year ended 31
December 2017 was mainly attributable to the proceeds from the
issuance of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to the Pre-IPO
investors of HK$142.0 million.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not have
any significant investments, acquisitions or disposals, except
the reorganisation of the Group with details set forth in the
Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 15
January 2018, and the net proceeds from the Global Offering
amounted to HK$609.8 million. As of the date of this annual
report, the net proceeds from the Global Offering have not been
used. The Directors are reviewing the business opportunities
available to the Group from time to time for the purpose of using
the net proceeds for the purposes stated in the Prospectus. The
Directors do not anticipate that there will be any material change
to the proposed use of the net proceeds from the Global Offering.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 301
employees (2016: 170). The increase in the number of employees
was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group's
business.

Capital expenditure and commitments
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of HK$85.2 million, primarily due to purchases of
medical equipment and leasehold improvement.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total capital
commitment of approximately HK$9.5 million (2016: HK$3.5
million), mainly comprising the related contracts of capital
expenditure for medical equipment.

Borrowings
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total borrowings of
HK$8.9 million.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December
2017.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits of HK$8.0 million were
pledged for the bank borrowings.

Financial instruments

Our major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables excluding prepayments, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, borrowings, trade payables and other
payables excluding non-financial liabilities. Our management
manages such exposure to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E T

Gearing ratio
As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio is not applicable due to
net cash position (2016: same).

Foreign exchange risk

Our subsidiaries mainly operate in Hong Kong and the PRC with
most of the transactions settled in HK$ and RMB, respectively.
Foreign exchange rate risk arises when recognised financial assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2017, the financial assets and liabilities of our
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and PRC are primarily denominated in
HK$ and RMB, respectively.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. We do not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk mainly arises from finance
lease liabilities at fixed interest rates.

Credit risk

Our credit risk mainly arises from trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated balance sheets.

The credit risk of cash and cash equivalents are limited because
the counterparties are state-owned or reputable commercial
banks which are high-credit-quality financial institutions located in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

We have a highly diversified source of patients, without any single
patient contributing material revenue. Moreover, some of our
revenue is settled by reputable commercial companies and local
government on behalf of patients. We have controls to closely
monitor the patients’ billing and payment status by communication
with commercial companies and local government to minimise the
credit risk. We review the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP (#E#&4), aged 58, is the
Chairman of the Board and our Chief Executive Officer and our
executive Director. Dr. Dennis LAM is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Dennis LAM is our founder
and has been leading our business growth over five years. Dr.
Dennis LAM obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in November 1984.
Dr. Dennis LAM has become a Fellow of The Royal College of
Surgeons of Edinburgh since 1988, Fellow of The Royal College
of Ophthalmologists since 1990 and a Fellow of The College of
Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong since 1994. Dr. Dennis LAM
obtained the Doctor of Medicine degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2003. Dr. Dennis LAM has been a
registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong since 1984, and a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the speciality of
ophthalmology since 1998.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the Immediate Past President of the Asia-Pacific
Academy of Ophthalmology (APAQ) and the Editor-in-Chief of the
Asia-Pacific Journal of Ophthalmology (APJO). Dr. Dennis LAM
serves the Asia-Pacific Academy of Ophthalmology (APAQO) and
is the President of the Asia-Pacific Vitreo-Retina Society (APVRS).
Moreover, Dr. Dennis LAM is also a Chair of the Academia
Ophthalmologica Internationalis (AOI), a member of the board of
trustee of the International Council of Ophthalmology (ICO), an
International Council representative of the International Society
of Refractive Surgery (ISRS) in 2015 and 2016, and a member of
the Board of Governors of World Glaucoma Association (WGA).
Dr. Dennis LAM was the Associate Dean (External Affairs) of the
Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese University of Hong Kong from
2004 to 2009. Dr. Dennis LAM was also the Chairman of the
Department of Ophthalmology & Visual Sciences, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong for 13 years (from 1998 to 2011). Over
the years, a number of awards have been bestowed to Dr. Dennis
LAM, including: “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” "awarded
by the Hong Kong Junior Chamber of Commerce in 1994; “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of the World" awarded by the Junior
Chamber International in 1995, “Young Leader of Hong Kong”
in 1998, "World Economic Forum's Hundred Global Leader for
Tomorrow” in 2000, “Hong Kong Humanity Award” in 2007,
the "Educator Award” of Asia-Pacific Association of Cataract
& Refractive Surgeons in 2005, the prestigious “Golden Apple
Award"” for the Best Clinical Teacher in the Asia-Pacific region
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B BHEERRLRNENEE

issued by the International Council of Ophthalmology in 2011,
“Jose Rizal Medal” (the highest achievement and contribution
award by APAQ), “De Ocampo Lecture Award” for excellence
in ophthalmology awarded by APAQO in 2003, on the “Top 100
Power List” of The Ophthalmologist in 2014 and 2016. Dr. Dennis
LAM has been appointed as a “Justice of Peace” in Hong Kong
since 2004. Dr. Dennis LAM has been serving as Deputy of the
National People’s Congress of China since 2008.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the spouse of Ms. LI, an executive Director
and the son-in-law of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive Director. Dr.
Dennis LAM has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

Ms. LI Xiaoting (Z &2 +), aged 39, is our Executive Director.
Ms. Ll is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
LI obtained a Bachelor of Tourism Management from Shenyang
University in China in July 2001 and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Business and Administration in Management from Massey
University in New Zealand in 2004. Ms. LI was the project
coordinator and executive officer Il at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2007 and from 2007 to 2009,
respectively. Ms. LI has been the general manager of our eye
centre in Hong Kong since January 2012 and the general manager
of the Shenzhen C-MER Hospital since March 2013.

Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director,
and the daughter of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive Director, Ms
LI has not held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Z={h884), aged 49, is our
executive Director. Dr. LEE has been practicing for us since
January 2012 and is our Head of Hong Kong Operation. Dr.
LEE obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1993.
Dr. LEE completed the Postgraduate Diploma in Epidemiology
and Biostatistics in 2008 and was awarded a Master of Science
degree in Epidemiology and Biostatistics in 2009 all from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE has been a registered
medical practitioner in Hong Kong since 1994.

Dr. LEE has been a Fellow of Royal College of Surgeons of
Edinburgh since 1998, Fellow of College of Ophthalmologists of
Hong Kong since 1998, a Fellow of College of Surgeons of Hong
Kong since 1998 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine in the specialty of ophthalmology since 2002.

Dr. LEE was the President of the Hong Kong Ophthalmological
Society ("HKOS" ). Dr. LEE was the Chief Editor of the Newsletter
of the HKOS called Eye Opener. Dr. LEE was elected as the
regional secretary of Hong Kong and has represented Hong Kong
in the Asia-Pacific Academy of Ophthalmology. Dr. LEE holds
two ophthalmic patents as an inventor. He was awarded “Ten
Outstanding Young Person of Hong Kong” in 2009.

Prior to joining us, Dr. LEE was the Honorary Clinical Assistant
Professor (from 2003 to 2007) and later the Honorary Clinical
Associate Professor since March 2011 in the Department of
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences, Faculty of Medicine, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE was the Assistant
Professor, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences,
Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
the Visiting Professor, Shantou University Medical College and
the Consultant, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual
Sciences, New Territories East Cluster, Hospital Authority.

Dr. LEE has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LEE does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Dr. LEE has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

THRBEE - 495 0 AWITES - TBAR
2012F 1 AR—ERBASEE - BAKMK
BBEBBE - TBRAEMI1993F 12 ANEEH
BRXKBAIIEREZ T 2A - R20085F
EREBRPNAERITRBHEEY FTRE
T ORI 2009 F IR BB XKL RIT
REHAYFTERBE T BN - FEAR
1994F B AHR B e

TELH198FRAXRET BRE2RINEIE
Bt - B1998F AR BREIEZkR
Tt - 819984 2 A EBINEHEE 20 bt - 1A
R E2002F R AEAE2ENERR T (R
B o

FREECHETERMBS([FERBEZ
ek FERMBZAM(RAINE
o TELABESTARMBERBREIME
WEALREEBRE - TEERFEMEAERY
BN o (N 2009 F M BB+ REEH
BFIE-

MAREEZF - TEEAGEATAEPXK
BRERRERREEN B2 RN EERKE
BIE (2003F £20074F ) R B2 2B IKFH
R(B2011F3AR) - TBELBETCES
RN ASBBRIRE R BRI E2E R IRHY
B ONBEREBERREHIR AR ERER
P RFRHERN L ABRBBZEMEL

FELEIMNES ARASREEELE
EERCERRBAMES EMRAT EHR
R s R (ER R EMARRA) W RS
1% e

B LB EBES - FEALMAAR T
A Bk B 2 AVEEERE BT -

FEENBE=FUERTTAEMIR L
MARME R -

FEHR%E2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 21



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

B BHEERRLRNENEE

Mr. LI Chunshan (Z# L %4), aged 66, is our executive Director.
Mr. LI is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LI graduated from the fundamental course specialty of
Liaoning University for party and governmental cadre in April 1986.
In 1998, he obtained the qualification certificate of land appraiser
and first prize for Progress in Science and Technology in the
Information System of Urban Cadastral Management from Land
Administration of Liaoning Province. In 2008, he was conferred
the title of Labour Model by People’s Government of Shenyang.

Mr. LI served in the Chinese army between 1969 and 1996. Mr.
LI was awarded Lieutenant Colonel in 1988. Since retirement
from the military service in 1993, Mr. LI had worked at different
departments and agencies of the Chinese government, including
Assistant to the Head and Deputy Head of the People’s Armed
Forces of Huanggu District, Shenyang (1993-1996), Deputy
Director of the Construction Committee of Huanggu District,
Shenyang City (1996-2002), Deputy Secretary to the Party
Committee of Lingbei Street, Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2002-2003), Deputy Director General of Property Bureau of
Huanggu District, Shenyang City (2003-2006) and Secretary of
the Party Committee of Culture, Sports Broadcast, Television
and News Publishing Bureau of Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2006-2011). He retired from the public services since May 2011
and joined Shenzhen C-MER Hospital in October 2012.

Mr. Ll is the father of Ms. LI, an executive Director, and the
father-in-law of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director, and the
spouse of Ms. CAO Yuerong, one of the grantees of the Pre-IPO
share option scheme adopted by the Company.

Mr. LI has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam (Z|#8rg84), aged 57, is our
independent non-executive Director. Dr. LAU obtained a Bachelor
of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from the University of Hong
Kong in November 1984. Dr. LAU received his Membership of
Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom in 1987. Dr.
LAU obtained the Doctor of Medicine degree from the University
of Hong Kong in 1992. Dr. LAU has been a Fellow of Hong Kong
College of Physicians since 1992, specialist of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine.

Dr. LAU was Chairman and CEO of Ribapharm. Prior to
Ribapharm, Dr. LAU served as the senior vice president of
Research and Development for ICN Pharmaceuticals Inc. Prior, Dr.
LAU served as the Senior Director of Antiviral Therapy at Schering-
Plough Research Institute. Dr. LAU has contributed more than
250 scientific publications in peer reviewed scientific journals and
has edited two books. Dr. LAU was a former Managing Director at
Roth Capital Partners LLC.

Dr. LAU is currently serving on the board of directors of Porton
Fine Chemicals (listed on Stock Shenzhen Exchange: 300363)
and a number of private companies including Avalon Biomedical
(Management) Limited (and its affiliated companies) and Aiviva
Corporation. Dr. LAU is also an honorary professor/adjunct
professor of the University of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a member of the Advisory Board of the
School of Biomedical Sciences of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Dr. LAU has served as the Chairman of the board of directors
and CEO of Athenex. Athenex has been listed on The NASDAQ
National Market since June 2017 (ATNX).

Dr. LAU has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LAU does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LAU has not held any directorship in
other publicly listed companies in the last three years.
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Dr LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OStJ JP (ZBEI#&&4), aged 63,
is our independent non-executive Director. Dr LI is a specialist
in Family Medicine in private practice in Hong Kong. Dr. LI is the
President Elect of the World Organisation of Family Physicians
(WONCA), the Immediate Past President of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine and the Chairman of the Governing Board
of Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response
Institute. Dr. LI is also the Censor of the Hong Kong College of
Family Physicians. Dr LI graduated with his first Bachelor of Arts
degree from Cornell University, USA, in 1975 followed by his
study of medicine and obtained the Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery from The University of Hong Kong in 1980. Dr.
Ll is a Fellow of The Hong Kong College of General Practitioners,
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, Honorary Fellow
of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong, Honorary Fellow
of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners, Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, Fellow of
the Faculty of Public Health of the Royal College of Physicians of
the United Kingdom, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Family
Physicians of Malaysia, Registered Mainland China Medical
Practitioner, Fellow of the American College of Physicians,
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Thailand,
Fellow of the Academy of Medicine, Singapore, Honorary Fellow
of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland, Honorary Fellow of
the Royal College of General Practitioners.

Dr. LI served as Member of Council of Cornell University. Dr. LI
is Clinical Professor (Honorary) in Family Medicine in the Jockey
Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong; Honorary Professor in the Li Ka Shing
Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong; Advisor
Professor of Shanghai Medical College, Fudan University, China;
Vice Chairman of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association;
Special Advisor of the Physicians’ Education and Training in
General Practice Committee of the Chinese Medical Physician
Association. Dr LI is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John
Ambulance Association. Dr. LI is the Chairman of Bauhinia
Foundation Research Centre and also the Chairman of the
board of directors of the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council Limited. Dr. LI has been an Honorary Steward of the
Hong Kong Jockey Club as at 1 June 2017. Dr. LI has been the
Adjunct Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health Science of
Macau University of Science and Technology from March 2014
to February 2016. Dr. LI is the Honorary Adviser of the Award
Scheme of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. Dr. Ll is also
a member of the committee on Promotion of Organ Donation of
Food and Health Bureau of the Hong Kong Government.
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Dr. LI has no relationship with any Directors, senior management
or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Dr. LI has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company
listed on Stock Exchange with the stock code: 00722, since 6
November 2015. Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in Hong Kong and
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung (EB#%£5E4), aged 76, is our
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MA is a graduate of Economics of The London School of
Economics and Political Science (The University of London). Mr.
MA is the Fellow Member of each of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a full member of The
Hong Kong Management Association.

Mr. MA has over 40 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and finance. Mr. MA is a director of Mayee Management Limited
and director of The People’s Insurance Company of China (Hong
Kong), Limited and Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited. He
is the founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly
known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Ltd).

Mr. MA is also an independent non-executive director of Asia
Financial Holdings Ltd. (Stock code: 00662), C.P. Pokphand Co.
Ltd. (Stock code: 00043), China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited (Stock code: 00836), Chong Hing Bank Limited
(Stock code: 01111) and Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock
code: 01993), all of which are listed on the main board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. MA resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Southwest Securities International
Securities Limited (formerly known as Tanrich Financial Holdings
Limited) (Stock code: 00812) on 27 January 2015.

Mr. MA has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (FRE =% 4), aged 70, is our independent
non-executive Director.

Mr. CHAN obtained a Bachelor in Economics from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom in 1971 and a MBA degree from the
City University of London in 1973. Mr. CHAN is the Founder and
Chairman of the Group of companies of Primasia (the “Primasia
Group”), which is in the business of investment, research and
consultancy, securities brokerage and so on. Mr. CHAN has
been the Chairman of Asian Securities Analysts Federation in
1986-1988. Mr. CHAN is also the Founder of Taiwan Sotheby’s
International Realty Company Limited. Mr. CHAN Chi Leong is
a licensed person under the SFO permitted to engaged in type
1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type 5
(advising on futures contracts) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities (as defined in the SFO).

Prior to founding the Primasia Group, Mr. CHAN worked in
Bankers Trust from 1988-1990, and he served as General
Manager of Kwang Hua Securities Investment Trust in Taipei
from 1986-1987, Executive Director in charge of sales and trading
of Hoare Govett Asia Limited from 1980-1987 and Manager of
Investment Banking Department of Deutsche Bank, Hong Kong
Branch in 1978-1980.

Mr. CHAN has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN has not held any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (R&#eZ *), aged 69, is our
independent non-executive Director. Ms Annie Liang BENTLEY
is the founder of Bentley Communications and a pioneer of the
branding, corporate and marketing communications profession in
Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY holds a bachelor of arts degree in English Literature
and Chinese Translation (1971) from the University of Hong
Kong, an advanced certificate in Education from the University of
Oxford (1976) and a master's degree in Buddhist Studies from
the University of Hong Kong (2010). Ms. BENTLEY was made an
Honorary Fellow of the University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Ms. BENTLEY began her career in educational publishing for
Oxford University Press working on their ESL books and the
Oxford English Chinese dictionary.

In 1981, she joined the public relations industry working for a
financial services banking and securities group in Hong Kong.
In 1987, she established her consultancy in partnership with
Omnicom, one of the world’s largest public relations and
advertising conglomerate, and grew Bentley Communications to
be one of Hong Kong's reputable communications agencies with
coverage in Singapore, Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou by 2007.

Ms. BENTLEY is Chairman of Robert Black College HKU. She is
a trustee of the China Oxford Scholarship Fund, board member
of Action for Epilepsy, Heifer International (Hong Kong) and
committee member of the Boys and Girls Clubs Association of
Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY has been a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Prince of Wales Hospital, and has served on the
Executive Committee of Project Vision since the inception of the
charity in 2006.

Ms. BENTLEY has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. BENTLEY does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. BENTLEY has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years.

RERZ T - 695% * REUIFATES - R
ZRZLREEABEBEARIREMA
EREMEEY - BEBARTISEREER
SRR -

BEUTRENREBARE 1971 FEREER X
BRANEIEE TS RN19765FBHE
Bl REBRESASUR  WH2010F &%
EBRBHEETEN - R ER2013F/K
BEBREBLERL -

R TS RABHIR R EHE AR
EHE BETRENIFFGEREREEER
FRFEERFHORE T -

R T8I EMAREEITE - ZEREE
—REMIRISBITRESFE® - 1987F -
HERBEANEESRGE, —RREEAE
BB EAHBEIBRERAR » EEBREFNR
BE  HZE2007F  ERABEBHNBNAH
BERARz—  EBBRIMNE R £
TEREM o

RZLRBABABRLESRRER - BAT
RABPRRBESETAA  BEKBEE B
BNREREENENNEREENEER/R

ZBEKE -

2T BETHRITRIERERZE SN
8 WS TN 2006F MK AR —E 1
FREZESHPTEZEEES -

RUTHEAES ARAERREEEHRE
EERCERR LTRADSIERBR(EER
ETRAN AR o

B EXAIEEIN  REUTAERARNFH
REEEMK S AR EEE MBS -

BEXEEIN  RUTNBE=FAE
EEMAR LW AR EEEMNERR -

FEHR%E2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 27



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

B BHEERRLRNENEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Wa Ping (BRZ ¥ %4 ), aged 33, is our Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary. Mr. CHAN joined us in April
2017 and is responsible for overseeing the finance, compliance,
merger and acquisition, and investor relations of the Group. Mr.
CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor in Business Administration in 2006 and has over 10
years of financial and accounting related experience.

Mr. CHAN is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining us, Mr. CHAN worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers and was involved in a number of
audit and assurance, capital market transactions and advisory
projects advising corporate clients including listed companies and
conglomerates worldwide.

Ms. SIU Man Yi (852 Zt), aged 36, is our Centre Manager in
Hong Kong. Ms. SIU is responsible for the overall management of
clinic services and daily operations of our eye centre and Satellite
Clinics in Hong Kong. Ms. SIU also designs and implements
standard operating procedures to maintain a consistent and
efficient work flow in the eye centres and all Satellite Clinics. Ms.
SIU graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Nursing in 2006 and a Master of Social Sciences in Behavioural
Health in 2010.

Ms. SIU is a registered nurse since 2006. Before joining us, Ms.
SIU worked for Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital during
the period between July 2006 and September 2007, the Chinese
University of Hong Kong during the period between September
2007 and January 2008, St Paul's Eye Centre during the period
between January 2008 to September 2010, and Asia Medical
Specialists Limited in the period between November 2010 and
May 2011.

Each of the senior management members is not or has not been

a director of any other listed company in Hong Kong and overseas
in the past three years.

28 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED %ISR AR AR

SREEE

BREFZ R4 - 335% 0 AU FHAERAE MW
£ BRAEENR2017TF4AMALERE B8 F
EEREENKE - A4 HEUARREERS
BREE ° RALER2006FREREEH K
B ESTHEEETEN LREARI0FE
BREETEBLER -

REERBEEGHAGEE - RIMALE
BT RELTERNESBACEBEIER
B W2RZIAERER  BEATERS
N##AEE  RENBWETRARREES
BELEEFPREHESR -

mB R - 365 - REFINBENTOLL
B BUTBEZRGHEREERER
REPOREELNAREE - MLLT
R RPITELERFIRE - LEFREH L
KB EEZHR—  SROIERE - &
HEREENBERE  N2006FEFHIEE
BT RPR2010FEBITRIERSEE
BNEELEE -

L2006 F K A— B MEL - B0
ABAI AT - B £ 52006 4F 7 A =2007 F
IR BIMER N ER LBRABITEZER -
7200749 A E20084F1 B A EBAE S
FRXCKE - FA20084E1 A E201049 A iR
EBREREBEREALOKEN2010F11 AR
2011 F5 A BEERA TN EREEEGRA
ﬁ} °

ERMEEEBKENBE=FHEIREE
ERSEIMEMEM TR R EEERT -



D

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Our Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of our Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of ophthalmic
services, sale of vision aid and pharmaceutical products in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

An analysis of our Group’s performance for the year by
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on page 69 of
this report.

Our Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of our Company on 30 May 2018 are entitled to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of our Company (the “AGM"). The
register of members of our Company will be closed from Friday,
25 May 2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018, both days inclusive. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, shareholders
should ensure that all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
24 May 2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of our Group during the year and a
discussion on our Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 18 of this
report respectively. Discussions on our Group's relationships with
its key stakeholders are also set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 5 to 7 of this report. An analysis of our Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in our Group's Financial Information Summary
on page 172 of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of our Group for the past four years ended 31 December
2017 are set on page 172 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of our Company are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of our Group and
our Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, note 23 and note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2017, the reserves of our Company available
for distribution to the shareholders of our Company amounted to
approximately HK$161.3 million (2016: HK$57.6 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Our Company approved and adopted the a share option scheme
(the "Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions
of the shareholders passed on 28 June 2017. As of the date of
this report, no share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme has been exercised pursuant to the terms of grant
of the options.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to our Directors, employees,
ophthalmologists/physicians, advisers, consultants and business
partners of our Group for their contribution, and to align the
corporate objectives and interests between us and our Grantees.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
approved and adopted pursuant to the resolutions passed by
our Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of our
Company held on 28 June 2017. On the same date, our Company
has adopted another share option scheme (the "Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). As of the date of this report, there is no option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As of the date of this report, Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 46,765,000 Shares (representing approximately
4.54% of the issued share capital of our Company as of the
date of this report) have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to 140 Grantees. The Grantees comprise three
Connected Grantees, seven Doctor Grantees, five Consultant
Grantees, two members of our senior management team, our
employees in Hong Kong and our physicians and employees in
the PRC. All the Pre-IPO Share Options were granted on or before
the Listing Date and no further options will be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after to the Listing Date. As of the
date of this report, all of the Pre-IPO Share Options had not been
exercised and remained outstanding.
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The Pre-IPO Share Options granted to the Grantees will be vested
on different dates.

The terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme except that:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

32

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all Pre-IPO Share Options is 46,765,000 Shares,
representing 4.68% of the enlarged issued share capital
of our Company immediately following completion of the
Global Offering (without taking into account any Share which
may be issued upon any exercise of the Over-allotment
Option and the options which have been or may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme);

save for the options which have been granted on 140
Grantees, no further options will be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date;

subject to any restriction contained in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
terms of grant thereof. All the Pre-IPO Share Options that
are not exercised by them within the exercise period shall
lapse and be deemed as cancelled and void;

the exercise prices for each Share under the Pre-IPO Share
Options are in the range between HK$0.10 and HK$1.0;

In terms of rights on death or ceasing employment:

(aa) If the Grantee (being an individual) dies before
exercising the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
in full, all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options shall
vest on the date of his death, and the legal personal
representative(s) of such Grantee may exercise all Pre-
IPO Share Options granted to the deceased within
twelve (12) months thereafter;
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(cc)

D

If the Grantee is an employee, director, consultant
or adviser of our Group at the time of the grant
of the relevant Pre-IPO Share Options and his or
her employment or service to our Company is
terminated on the ground of disability resulting from
an occupational accident, all unvested Pre-IPO Share
Options shall vest on the termination date of the
employment or engagement of such Grantee. The
Grantee may exercise all Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him or her within twelve (12) months
thereafter; or

If the Grantee is on leave without pay accumulated for
more than one hundred and eighty-three (183) days in
any calendar year after the Listing Date, the vesting
periods for all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to him or her shall be respectively extended for
twelve (12) months. If any such extension will result
in the vesting period of any unvested options to cross
beyond the date of the 3rd anniversary of 1 April 2017,
1 September 2017, 1 November 2017, 1 December
2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018 (as the case
maybe), such extension shall be deemed to be made
up to the business day immediately prior to the date of
the 3rd anniversary of 1 April 2017, 1 September 2017,
1 November 2017, 1 December 2017, 1 January 2018
or 1 June 2018 (as the case maybe).
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The following table sets forth a summary of the key terms and

conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Options:

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior

management team

—RYTES  LEREARA

- ZRAEEEKAE
14 Grantees (including Dr. Vincent
LEE and Mr. CHAN Wa Ping, a
member of our senior management
team, and seven Doctor Grantees).
Further information on the Pre-IPO
Share Options is set forth in the
paragraphs under “D. Share Option
Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme" in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.
WERR A (BEZHEBEREM
B -2RlERENKERET
EREABEARA)  ERAFE
ERRRENE-SEHINERE
TNt skmID kiR E -1 E R0 E
EnERETE B -

Maijor terms i
TERR
Number of grantees

REABE

Pre-IPO Share Options granted
(in terms of number of our
Shares and the shareholding

An aggregate of 3.13% of the
number of our Shares in issue
immediately following completion

percentages) of the Global Offering, the
ERENERDERERMBRE  Capitalisation Issue and the full
(RRABERBREALME)  exercise of the Overallotment

Option, representing 32,276,000
Shares
ARERREEREERARMES
TR R R %ﬁ(rﬂiré
AMBEAHRA %rﬁa’rsra%
32,276,008 7
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Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REBNEER
—ZRAEEEMAE
28 Grantees (including Ms. SIU

Man Yi, a member of our
senior management team).
Further information on the
Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to the member of our senior
management team is set

forth in the paragraphs under
“D. Share Option Schemes

-1 Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme" in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.

BEARN (BERMER—
LEREREGHERERX
1) BB TRMRAERE
KR EMERAREEBRE
HE—- RSN BRERNS
MIDERIE &1 ERAEE
AR R &

An aggregate of 0.45% of

the number of our Shares in
issue immediately following
completion of the Global
Offering, the Capitalisation
Issue and the full exercise of
the Over-allotment Option,
representing 4,666,000 Shares.
AMEERANEERERE 4
TRk BRRLRERTH
TRERMERTRD %IE f
0.45% * #14,666,000% 13 °

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED #HIERAEEERARATE

TREINERAFE
R AR -

An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—FHTES  —EMEARAR
RPENEERES

93 Grantees (including Mr. LI
Chunshan, an executive Director
and Ms. CAQ Yuerong, a Connected
Grantee and the spouse of Mr. LI
Chunshan and the mother of Ms.
LI). Further information on the
Pre-IPO Share Options granted to
our executive Director is set forth

in the paragraphs under “D. Share
Option Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to
the Prospectus.
REABA(DENTESZELL
ERFFLFENEBRELLH
FHHCAO YuerongZ T (&%
AN)) e BERFEMITESNER
DREEMERENE-SERER
BREEMEND BRETE 18
RREERRRE SR -

An aggregate of 0.71% of the
total number of our Shares in
issue immediately following
completion of the Global Offering,
the Capitalisation Issue and the
full exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 7,323,000
Shares

EREEREREE RENMES
TR RIS %rﬂiré
AMBEARA %(EE’JO 7%
7,323, 0008 A&7 «

AR E B FS

Five Consultant Grantees

REBAARA

Five Consultant Grantees.
Further information on the
Pre-IPO Share Options is set
forth in the paragraphs under
“D. Share Option Schemes

-1 Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix

[V to the Prospectus.
REERERA - BBERRR
BENBRES AN E-SEH
HARRERMEID BRE
AR 1ERDREERRE
R

An aggregate of 0.24% of the
total number of our Shares in
issue immediately following
completion of the Global
Offering, the Capitalisation
Issue and the full exercise of
the Over-allotment Option,
representing 2,500,000 Shares.
AHERBEREEREAL
e RIS EEAC Y 75
e GRE R G
0.24% * §12,500,0008 17 °



Major terms
TERF

Exercise period

[y

Exercise percentages

fTEaSt

Exercise price

TiEEs

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
—BUTES  LEBLARA
i ENEEBLIR
REBEKHRE
36-month period commencing from
the third anniversary of the latter of
(a) the expiry of the First Six-Month
Period and (b) the first anniversary
of 1 April 2017 or 1 December
2017. Allunexercised Pre-IPO Share
Options will lapse.
BlalE7 AR BREERR b 20175
4R1RM07F12R1RRF—FE
BOABIE A% iR =FE B
1h#1361E A R - TR TR S
RAREERERERR -

org;

36-month period commencing from
the latter of (a) the expiry of the First
Six-Month Period and (b) the first
anniversary of 1 January 2018. All
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options
will lapse.

Bl E~EASRMERR (b 20185
1A1BRR—FERBRERE)
FIKY361E A B « FE RIE(TERH
BRARRERBRIES LY -

In three equal tranches for each of
the 12-month period commencing
from the date of commencement of
the exercise period for a period of
36-month.
P=BEGEE - HRIR6EA SR
NETESERRE SR 12@ARG
e

or 5
One tranche.

_Eq‘,

HK$0.1 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

RIS RETRG0.18T -

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REENEER
- ERREEEMAE
36-month period commencing

from the third anniversary of

1 April 2017. All unexercised
Pre-IPO Share Options will
lapse.

B2017F4 1R RR=FER
FIaRI36(E A EE - A REN
FEIEPONGE S i S
e

One tranche.

—/Hﬁo

HK$1.0 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

SRERRE REIRD 08T -
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An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—FHTES  —EBEARAR
RPENEERES

36-month period commencing

from the third anniversary of 1 April
2017 or 1 September 2017. All
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options
will lapse.

820174 A1A%2017F9R 18
M=FEARBNIEASE - i
RETENERRRRERERES
K-

org;

36-month period commencing from
the third anniversary of 1 April 2017
for 60.0%.
B2017E4A1RRF=FE AR
#1361 A B3 © 60.0% °

60-month period commencing from
the fifth anniversary of 1 April 2017
for 40.0%.

B2017E4A1RRF AL AR

#6018 A E8R : 40.0% °

Al unexercised Pre-IPO Share
Options will lapse.
ERETENERAREENER
Y

One tranche.

—/E;qo
org

Two tranches
R o

HK$1.0 for each Share to be allotted
and issued.

BRAEE RER1.08T -
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Five Consultant Grantees
REBEARA

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of
the latter of (a) the expiry of
the First Six-Month Period
and (o) the first anniversary of
1 November 2017, 1 January
2018 or 1 June 2018.
ElE~EASRERRD)
2017811418  2018F 181
As2018E6 A1REH—FE
BUARBE RE)RHF=FY
RFAH361E A 4 -

In three equal tranches for
gach of the 12-month period
commencing from the date

of commencement of the
exercise period for a period of
36 months.
HEBERITE - HRIR3G6EA
HRENATREERR AR
RN -

HK$0.1 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

SRR REIRD 08T -

35



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

Major terms
TERR

Performance target

REER

Cessation of cooperation or
employment

RiEAFAER

Lock-up period following the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options
BRDRBERBRETHEEN
2ES
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An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
—BUTES  LEBLARA
RPEHENEERER
—ERREREKAE

No performance target for the
physicians practising in the PRC
and the member of our senior
management team.
RABRENRE RS REZEYNK
BmEERE -

The exercise of the Pre-IPO

Share Options by our Hong Kong
Ophthalmologists is subject to
agreed performance target in terms
of revenue generated in each of the
12-month period. If the performance
target cannot be satisfied, the Pre-
IPO Share Options exercisable
during the relevant 12-month period
would be exercisable on a pro-rata
basis with the target amount of
revenue.
BARRBETFERLREENE
RiEEX S 1208 A BRAEE R
AOKELERERR - EEEE
FER - MA@ AR P16
WERLREENERERRER R
gk & BIRLAIATRE

Pro-rata in terms of revenue
generated in each of the 12-month
period with the target amount

of revenue for those grantees
subject to performance target.
Pro-rata on the number of months
of employment in each of the
12-month period for those grantees
not subject to the performance
target.
AREEARARNEEAMS &
BHEEYESBNE12EABHE
ERASBILN - EAREERRR
ROASATE @ ZE512EAEHE
BRO#L -

Not applicable.
TR -

Our employees in Hong Kong

and a member of our senior
management team
REBNEER
- ERREREMAE
No performance target.
BEERE-

No pro rata adjustment and

the unexercised Pre-IPO

Share Options will lapse upon
cessation of employment for
whatever reasons.
RECARAR HEREE - B
BUOIBERARETENERA
FREENBRESAN

Not applicable.
TER -
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An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—FHTES  —EBEARAR
RPENBERES

The exercise of the Pre-IPO

Share Options by 5 physicians in
the PRC is subject to the agreed
performance targets in terms of
revenue generated during the first
36-month and then 24-month period
immediately after 1 April 2017.

If the performance target cannot

be satisfied, the Pre-IPO Share
Options exercisable during the
relevant 12-month period would be
exercisable on a pro-rata basis with
reference to the target amount of
revenue.
RABENELBETRERAREE
AEREAT 2201764 A1 BE
E360E A BRI R R4 AR
EERARNTEEER EHR - %
BRRREN  NEE12E AR
TORNERLREEMERERS
ZABRYES BRI -

No pro rata adjustment and the
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options
will lapse upon cessation of
employment for whatever reasons.
SREMRAL LERE  HREY
VBRSO BlE PN
BEIRERAM -

Not applicable.
TER

Five Consultant Grantees

EEERARA

No performance target.
BEERE-

The exercise of the Pre-IPO
Share Options is subject to the
completion of services for a
period of 12 months.
TFERDFEENREREER
TR 208 A BRR AR -

Pro-rata on the number of
months of service engagement
in the 36-month contract period
commencing from 1 November
in each year. Cessation of
engagement before November
will continue to be subject to
the grant of the Pre-IPO Share
Options in the forthcoming
November.
BEFENA1ARBEASHS
WERERE A DS - 111
RZ AR ILER - FIRERHRE
RERON AERERDFEE
FIREIRIEFAR -

Not applicable.
TER -
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Detailed information on grantees of the Pre-IPO Share Option BAARBEENBRETENARARES
Scheme who are Directors or senior management of our Group is MAEBRRERE)FEHINGT
set forth below:

Percentage of

Shares in issue
immediately following
completion of

the Global Offering,
the Capitalisation

Number of underlying and the full exercise of the

Shares to be issued upon Over-allotment Option
the exercise of the Pre-IPO HEEERBER
Share Options in full ERETR AR
BHATEER AR R
Grantee and position AHBEABRER THERERTROMN
EBRARSH R EATHERR A E BaH
Connected Grantees
BEAREA
1. Dr. Vincent LEE (Executive Director) 12,953,000 1.26
PHEBEBITES)
2. Mr. LI Chunshan (Executive Director) 777,000 0.08
FHEILEEFTES)
3. Ms. CAQO Yuerong (Finance Manager) 259,000 0.03

CAO YuerongX £ (B #5432 )

Grantees who are members of our senior management team

BREREEERRENERA

4. Mr. CHAN Wa Ping (Chief financial 933,000 0.09
officer and company secretary)

BREF L (M BRERATWE)

5. Ms. SIU Man Yi (Centre manager) 432,000 0.04
B R (ROEE)
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Details of the shares outstanding on which options are granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to Directors and senior
management of our Group as of 31 December 2017 under the

BEEXAAEEERETERNESRA
SESREEER I NBRES R KT
BRI FA2017F12 B31 BB T ¢

scheme are as follows:

Number of options
BREHA
Heldat  Granted  Expired  Exercised Heldat  Exercise
1 January during during during ~ 31December price Grant  Exercisable  Exercisable
2017 theyear  theyear theyear 2017 HK$ date from il
2017 20175
118 2ANE R BUT fikz
FEE  RERRE RERTE RERGE gt} &7 REA% o DAY |
Executive Director HEe
Or. Vincent LEE FhREL - 12953000 - - 12,953,000 0.0 3Apil2017  16July 2018 31 March 2023
M7ELAIE 2018F7A168  2023E3A31A
Wr. LI Chunshan FRlLE - 7700 - - TT000 10 Shpil2017 1 Apii 2020 31 March 2023
N7EARIE 00F4FIR 2023E3A31A
Senior Management BEEE
Mr. CHAN Wa Ping BTt
(Chief financial officer and ~ (RBERRRNE)
company secretary) - 933,000 - - 933,000 0.1 3Aprl2017  16July2018 31 March 2023
M7ELAIE 2018F7A168  2023E3A31H
Ms. SIU Man Yi Ve
(Centre manager) (h\EE) - 432000 - - 432,000 10 3Aprl 2017 1Aprl 2020 31 March 2023
N7EARIE 00F4FIR 2023E3A31A

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of our Company approved and adopted a
share option scheme on 13 December 2017 (the "Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) to enable our Company to grant options
to eligible participants as incentives and rewards for their
contribution to our Group. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
took effect on 15 January 2018 (the listing date of our Company),
and no option has been granted up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

Who may participate

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer Options to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the
terms set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to:

(i) any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our
Group (the "Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded
to work full-time or part-time for any member of our
Group (the “Employee”);

(i) adirector or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of
our Group;

(i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our

Group;

(iv) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our

Group;

(v) acustomer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group;

(vii a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group; and

(vi) an associate of any of the persons referred to in

paragraphs (a) to (c) above.
(the persons referred above are the “Eligible Persons”)

Maximum number of shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any options granted under any
other share option scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of our Company in issue as of the Listing
Date unless our Company obtains a fresh approval.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

40

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of our Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of
the shares in issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Person concerned for a period of
28 days from the offer date provided that no such grant of
an option may be accepted after the expiry of the effective
period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.0 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by our Company on or
before the date upon which an offer of an option must be
accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 30 days after the offer date. Such remittance shall
in no circumstances be refundable.

Exercise Price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
option shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the exercise price shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of: (i) the nominal value of
a share; (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
and (iii) the average closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5)
business days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by our Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.
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(g) Duration of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Listing Date, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto which are at that time or become
thereafter capable of exercise under the rules of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Our Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2017 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, our five largest clients
accounted for 2.5% of our total revenue, of which 1.4% of our
total revenue was generated from our largest client, which was an
insurance company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, our five largest
suppliers accounted for 52.1% of our total purchases,
respectively. These five largest suppliers include suppliers of
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and intraocular lenses. For
the same period, our largest supplier accounted for 20.3% of our
total purchases.

None of our Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of our Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of our Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS

Our Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP (#k/IE%2
Executive Officer)

Ms. LI Xiaoting (Z ¥ % =+)

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Z={H 4882 4

Mr. LI Chunshan (&L 4)

) (Chairman and Chief

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam (22 g

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP (Z Bk 58 4)
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung (55 RREE 5L 4)
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (FRES = 5E4)

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (2 &4 +)

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company, Dr.
LEE Yau Wing Vincent, Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam and Mr. MA
Andrew Chiu Cheung will retire as Directors in accordance with
Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company (“Articles
of Association”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of our Directors, the senior management and
company secretary of our Group are set out on pages 19 to 28 of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company on 13 December 2017 and our Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 13 December 2017 and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term
of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by our Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Group remunerates its employees, including our Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to our Group's profitability, our Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to our Group. Our Company has adopted share option
scheme as an incentive to our Directors and eligible employees.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of our Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of our Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of our Group to which our
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Maida Medical Software Development (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (=B BRI ORI BRAR]) (“Shenzhen Maida”) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of D&S Limited which is a connected
person of our Company. Shenzhen Maida is therefore a connected
person of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing
Rules.

Shenzhen C-MER Hospital entered into a lease agreement with
Shenzhen Maida dated 25 May 2017 (the “Lease Agreement”)
in relation to the lease to Shenzhen C-MER Hospital of a property
located at No. 101 Sheng Tang Building, Tairanjiu Lu, Futian,
Shenzhen, the PRC (the “Shenzhen Property”), which constitutes
continuing connected transactions for our Company.

The Lease Agreement was for a term from 1 June 2017 to 31
May 2020. The Shenzhen Property is currently used by Shenzhen
C-MER Hospital as the premises for our eye hospital in Shenzhen.

The rental expense payable under the Lease Agreement is
determined with reference to (1) the historical amounts of
rental during the three years ended 31 December 2016 and (2)
the market rates of the premises of similar condition and size.
Shenzhen C-MER Hospital has the option to renew the Lease
Agreement upon its expiry with reference to the then prevailing
market rates subject to compliance with the Listing Rules for
a term not exceeding three years from the expiry date of any
preceding lease term until Shenzhen C-MER Hospital decides not
to exercise the renewal option.

The amount of annual rental under the Lease Agreement is
determined on an arm’s length basis and upon normal commercial
terms. Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an
independent valuer of our property interests, has confirmed that
the amount of rental payable by us for the Shenzhen Property
under the Lease Agreement is fair and reasonable and comparable
to the prevailing market rates.
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The following table sets forth the annual caps for the rental
expense payable by us in respect of the Shenzhen Property for
the three years ending 31 December 2019:

Annual rental FHe

EEEHE

TREFEZE2019F12A31B I =EAFER
PRI MEEMNNESBRAFE LR

Year ended/ending 31 December

HZE12A318LLEE
2019 2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT
9,885 9,885 9,885

20194
HK$'000

FHET

The transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement also
constitute related party transaction of our Company under HKFRS,
details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above non-exempt continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to our Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of our Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 "“Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
our Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
44 to 45, have compiled with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2017, none of our Directors is interested
in any business, apart from our Group’s businesses, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of our Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Our Company has share option schemes, the details of which are
set out in the section headed "“Share Options” in the Report of
our Directors. Save as the aforesaid, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As our Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of 31
December 2017, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and
section 352 of the SFO were not applicable to our Directors or
chief executive of our Company as of 31 December 2017.
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As of the date of this report, the interests and short positions
of our Directors and chief executive of our Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of our Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

(A) Long position in ordinary Shares of our Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

Esns

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Beneficial owner; Interest in
Dennis JP controlled corporation
MR ER 28 A (A1) EnEEA
RYEEE R

Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam
2l e

Beneficial owner

EDEAA

Note: 722,696,756 shares are beneficially owned by C-MER Group
Limited (“C-MER Group"). C-MER Group Limited is owned as to
70% by Dr. Dennis LAM and 30% by Ms. LI. Ms. LI is the spouse
of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of them have been managing and
operating our business collectively and reaching consensus before
making major decisions in respect of our business. Both Dr. Dennis
LAM and Ms. LI will continue to act jointly following the Listing so
far as the exercise of the voting rights attached with our Shares
(through C-MER Group) is concerned.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by C-MER Group.
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(A) RAERAEBRNEFR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

our Company (%)
RAQ T R

B E 2 EE(%)
70.2%

Number of shares

REBE

722,696,756
(long position) (Note)
722,696,756/%
(52 ) (HtsE)
8,030,865 0.8%
(long position)
8,030,865/% (4F &)
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(B) Long position in underlying Shares of our
Company - physically settled unlisted equity
derivatives

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEnA M
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent Beneficial owner
EXES- S EmEEA

Mr. LI Chunshan Beneficial owner

FHEIKSE EmEEA
Notes:
(1 Details of the above share options granted by our Company are

set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Share Option Scheme" in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this report, so far as is
known to our Directors or chief executive of our Company, none
of our Directors or chief executive of our Company had interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of our Company or its associated corporations which (a) were
required to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(B) RALTHEBRDGHNEE -BY
BEFLTRAITETR

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
our Company (%)

the share options
granted (Note 1)

FRARLBREN NG L
FEBAR AR A (H=E1) B E 2 Ee(%)
12,953,000 1.3%

(long position) (Note)

12,953,000/%

(452) (B3E)
1,036,000 0.1%

(long position) (Note)

1,036,000/
(R (FiH5E)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF OUR
COMPANY

As our Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of 31
December 2016, Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
section 336 of the SFO were not applicable to our Company as of
31 December 2016.

As of the date of this report, so far as was known to any Director
or chief executive of our Company, the following persons (other
than our Directors and chief executive of our Company) had
interests and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to our Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by our Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

Number of shares

722,696,756
(long position) (Note)

EEEHE

R AR TF2016912 831 B X KRR B
1 R EE2016512A31H » F5 M
E1EHIEEXVEPE2 M35 2 R iE 5 K 2R E 150
F336IEI T EARARAF]

RABERH  MEAEFHARRAHZSIT
BABMA - TOIAL(ERERARBRSIT
BABBRIN R B0 SRR 10 h B IR
H R G EPIEXVEIE2M3D AR AR AR E
WERLHERARRRIEE S KRG RDIFE
336{5FATFE N E M AR KRR R D
MR R SHORE o

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

our Company (%)
i NG
BAE 2 (%)
70.2%

R BB

722,696, 7560% (472 ) (BHizE)

BRRERE ERME

C-MER Group Beneficial owner

HIHEE EnEEA
Notes:

1. C-MER Group Limited is owned as to 70% by Dr. Dennis LAM and 30%
by Ms. LI. Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of them
have been managing and operating our business collectively and reaching
consensus before making major decisions in respect of our business.
Both Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI will continue to act jointly following the
Listing so far as the exercise of the voting rights attached with our Shares
(through C-MER Group) is concerned.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by C-MER Group.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this report, our
Directors were not aware that there is any other party (not being
a Director or chief executive of our Company) who, as of the date
of this report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of our Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to our Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by our Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

PRE -

1. HHEEERARAWNERSEERTLTH A
FEHEHT70% R30% M « T+ RMIEHER
EREE - EMAY—BEXREEREEHM
BB AEL B BRMEBHE RKAE
BR—HER - WESEAERFLITHN EMEY
R (BRAITEE)TERNIEZREELR
118

RIEFE S RPEGD) - WIEHE LR AHE
BREKENRN P A RS -

B EXPIEEIN  SLEEMM - RARE
HE - BEEMEMAL(TBERERARF
RRITRAB)RAREBH » RARRN
S AERER (0 B IR E 75 B R P XV
BB 2 K370 BRHY RSB M AN A B R Sk AD 8%
RARBIRIERE 7 & S (R0 £ 3361 EF
BN ERMARRN BB D eERR
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to our Company and to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, our
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the period from the Listing
Date up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”section on
pages 51 to 61 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of the significant event after the balance sheet date are
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14
to 15 of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
independent auditor of our Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of our Board
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 15
January 2018. During the period from the Listing Date up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has applied the principles
as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which are applicable
to the Company.

Code provisions A.1.1 and C.3.3 respectively provide that
board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with a majority of Directors being
present and the Audit Committee must meet at least twice a year
with the issuer’s auditors. The Company was not a listed company
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and hence, it did not
follow the requirements in the Code provisions A.1.1 and C.3.3.
During the period from 1 January 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board has convened one meeting and the Audit
Committee has convened two meetings with the auditors of the
Company for the purpose of approving the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Company
will continue to strictly comply with the corporate governance
requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, during the period from the Listing
Date up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions as set forth in the
CG Code, save and except for code provision A.2.1 which states
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Dr.
LAM Shun Chiu Dennis is both our chairman and chief executive
officer and is responsible for the overall management of the
Group and directing the strategic development and business plans
of the Group.
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The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same individual would enable
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors (including Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis) and five
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board of
Directors will nevertheless review the structure and composition
of the Board of Directors from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions of the Directors.
Employees of the Group (the “Relevant Employees”) who,
because of their office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities are also
subject to compliance with the Model Code. Following specific
enquiry, each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the
Model Code throughout the period from the Listing Date and up
to the date of this annual report. No incident of non-compliance
of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees was noted by the
Company during the period from the Listing Date to the date of
this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. LI Xiaoting

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent

Mr. LI Chunshan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang
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The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed "“Directors and Senior Management” on pages
19 to 28 of this annual report. The relationships between the
members of the Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are served by Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP and have
not been segregated as required under code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board is of the view that such arrangement
provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership to the
Company and allowed for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment
and that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Each of the executive Directors is appointed
under a service contract for a term of three years from 28 June
2017 which is terminable by either party by giving three months’
written notice to the other party. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors is appointed under a services contract for a
term of three years from 13 December 2017 which is terminable
by either party by giving three months’ written notice to the other

party.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM at least
once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next following AGM after his/
her appointment and they will be subject to re-election at such
meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis,
determines and monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual
budgets and business plans, evaluates the performance of the
Group, and supervises the management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the
corporate and financial policies, review and assessment of
the Company’s financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group's business and affairs.

All Directors, including and independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company's expenses.

For the year end 31 December 2017 up to the date of this annual
report, the Company organized a training session conducted by
lawyers for Directors and all Directors have attended the training
session. The sessions conducted by lawyers focused on corporate
governance, directors’ duties, responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers
and Share Buy-backs. The Directors and senior management
have also reviewed the performance of the Company and the
sales strategy of the industry and have also discussed the market
condition of the industry.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
(www.cmereye.com) and the HKEx's website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Board
of Directors” in this Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review,
supervise, and assist the Board in providing an independent view
of, our financial reporting processes, and internal control and risk
management systems, as well as to oversee the audit process,
review our annual and interim financial statements, provide advice
and comments to the Board on matters related to corporate
governance, and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board from time to time.

As the Audit Committee was established and the shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date which is after
the year end of 2017, the Audit Committee did not have any
meeting and did not meet the Company's external auditors during
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee had 2 meetings with the
auditor of the Company to discuss the annual audit for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
(i) develop and review the policies and the structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; (ii)
evaluate the performance of, and make recommendations on the
remuneration packages and long-term incentive compensation
or equity plans for, the Directors and senior management; and
(iii) evaluate and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements.

As the Remuneration Committee was established and the shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date which is
after the year end of 2017, the Remuneration Committee did not
have any meeting during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Nomination Committee

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors and senior management, and on matters of
succession planning.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to professional
qualifications, regional and industry experience, educational and
cultural background, skills, industry knowledge, reputation and
gender. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

As the Nomination Committee was established and the shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date which is
after the year end of 2017, the Nomination Committee did not
have any meeting during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and the guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meeting
and Board Committee meetings of the Company held during
the period from 1 January 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report set out in the table below:

Independent Non-executive Directors:

SEEREE

EEERARANEEREARREER -
EXNERERENEIIRSEEERE
RRRHEETIERREE R END mHBER &
B SRR ARSI METRARAR
RESTEEREATAMNENL - URARERE
SAMEREIREER o

EENZEENENHERR

LEEN2018F1ATHELREEAFRHAR
IHEMRITNE S S S  E22ZE898
HEARRREAS L FREEINT

BYFHTES:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE BRI

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee
EEnE REZEE FMZEES ERZEES
Executive Directors
HITEF
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP 11 N/A N/A N/A
MBS & (X Fa 1) NiE A NiE A TiE A
Ms. LI Xiaoting 11 N/A N/A N/A
FTHIEZ L TiEA TiEA TiE A
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent Al N/A N/A N/A
TIHEEE N3 TiEHA N3 A
Mr. LI Chunshan A N/A N/A N/A
FELEE iE NiE A NiE A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIFHITEF
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam on N/A N/A N/A
2L TiE A NiE ANiE
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS JP 11 N/A N/A 1/2
FRIREE(REHEE - X FHL) NiE A i A
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung 11 N/A N/A 2/2
HBRRESAE TiEA TiEA
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong 11 N/A N/A N/A
PRES SRS i A iE A i A
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang 01 N/A N/A 172
R&le it TiEA i A
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According to article 56 of the Articles of Association, an annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year other
than the year of the Company's adoption of the amended and
restated Articles of Association. As the amended and restated
Articles of Association which became effective on the Listing Date
was adopted pursuant to written resolutions of all Shareholders
passed on 13 December 2017, no AGM was held during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 62 to 68 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration that should be paid to the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the audit of
the year ended 31 December 2017 and non-audit services is set
out below:

FRiZ R BRES

Eat R
TR

Services rendered

Audit service
Non-audit Services
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Bt EAER
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company'’s assets and the interests of Shareholders. Subsequent
to the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company on 21 March 2018, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function. Please refer to section headed "Business — Risk
Management and Internal Control” in the Prospectus for further
details.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control structure are as follows:

- Well-defined organisational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities to minimise risk of errors and abuse;

- Clear and written policies and procedures have been
established and regularly reviewed for major functions and
operations;

- Important business functions or activities are managed by
experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

- Continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken
where necessary; and

- Internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.

A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group's operations and resources are focused on
high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to evaluate
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
by reviewing the major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis every year. The review covers all material controls including
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management.
Review results and recommendations in the form of written
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for discussion and
review. Follow up actions will be taken up by the internal audit
team to ensure that findings previously identified have been
properly resolved.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wa Ping, who is the Company secretary of the
Company, reports directly to the Board and is responsible for,
inter alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors
from time to time.

Since the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date, Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules was not applicable to
the Company for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

1. convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company'’s Hong Kong office at Suite 1535, Central Building,
1-3 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under Article 58 of the Articles of Association
once a valid requisition is received.
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2. propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person
for election as a Director, please refer to “"Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as
director”under the section headed “Corporate Governance”
of the company’s website at www.cmereye.com.

3. put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Suite 1535, Central
Building, 1-3 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and
other extraordinary general meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

The Company’'s website (www.cmereye.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
company to the Shareholders, other stakeholders and investors.
The Company will also update the website information from time
to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the latest
development of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is available
on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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pwc

To the Shareholders of C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of C-MER Eye Care
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 171, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETEE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HARESSHE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

g2 BWEORRERE

Refer to note 4 (Critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and note 17 (Trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017, the gross trade receivables
of the Group were approximately HK$7.7 million,
which were assessed by management of the
Company as past due but not yet impaired.

Management assesses the recoverability of the
trade receivables and provides for impairment if the
carrying value is lower than the recoverable amount.
Provision for impairment of trade receivables involves
management judgement and the actual outcome may
be different from original estimation.

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the gross trade receivables to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and
judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverability of these trade receivables.

EREE AN 4 (B S A R A R
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We understood, evaluated and validated the key
control on credit control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on periodic
review on overdue trade receivables, and assessment
on recoverability of these receivables.

We sent audit confirmations to customers on a
sample basis to confirm the trade receivable balances
outstanding at year end.

We reviewed the ageing profile of trade receivables,
focusing on the major long-overdue trade receivables
for which no provision had been made. For those
balances with settlement subsequent to the year
end, we tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement by tracing to bank receipts. For unsettled
trade receivables that were past due, we enquired
management the reasons for which receivables
being outstanding, whether actions had been
taken in recovering the receivables, and assessed
if appropriate provision had been made, taking into
account of the customers’ relationship with the Group
and past repayment history.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgement made by management in respect of
collectability of trade receivables were supportable by
the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this annual report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cecilia, Lai Ting Yau.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mERHEKER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LFE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
PEE FET FH&T
Revenue Wz 5 311,228 248,659
Cost of revenue SHE A 8 (175,797) (153,683)
Gross profit EF 135,431 94,976
Other income HabgA 6 2,407 1,497
Selling expenses HE R 8 (11,263) (7,874)
Administrative expenses TR X 8
— Listing expenses —+FWER (24,160) -
— Other administrative expenses — BT (43,584) (30,5634)
Other gains, net HAib U5 F 58 7 210 1,463
Operating profit RKEFE 59,041 59,5628
Finance expenses BsHX 10 (555) (932)
Profit before income tax B AT 15 %54 A A 58,486 58,596
Income tax expense TSR 1M (18,359) (11,709)
Profit for the year FRFRHE 40,127 46,887
Item that may be subsequently B eE 7
reclassified to profit or loss 1Ba i E A
Currency translation differences SN E R 5,588 (3,869)
Total other comprehensive income/ FREMEMH
(loss) for the year WA (F8)#%E 5,588 (3,869)
Total comprehensive income RO R ERTE AENG
attributable to equity holders ZHEBAEEE
of the Company 45,715 43,018
Earnings per share for profit FRALQAREERFEA
attributable to equity holders EERENSREF
of the Company during the year (LERAEADIR)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
- basic — 5K 12 5.22 6.49
— diluted — 8 12 5.15 6.49

The notes on pages 74 to 171 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

ASSETS
Non-current assets

BE
FRBEE

As at 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000
BT

20174
HK$°000
FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 13 109,179 29,550
Intangible assets EFEEE 14 2,453 1,407
Deferred income tax assets FELEATSHEE 27 935 723
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 18 10,809 5,867
Financial assets at fair value RN ERTA

through profit or loss BaemEE 21 - 5,205

123,376 42,752

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 6,873 2,328
Amount due from a director and R —RBEER

shareholder P& ER R E 19 = 16
Amounts due from related parties FE UL BB 5 B 32 - 1,393
Trade receivables B S ElRIE 17 7,692 4,456
Deposits, prepayments and e - BARER

other receivables E b pE I FR A 18 9,407 6,044
Financial assets at fair value RAFERTA

through profit or loss B emEE 21 60 12,232
Current income tax recoverable I e = BNEAFT 15 8L - 661
Pledged bank deposits EHIRRITIE 20 8,000 _
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRSEEY 20 77,969 58,760

110,001 85,890

Total assets HWEE 233,377 128,642
EQUITY k=
Equity attributable to equity RATEFFEA

holders of the Company FEfhiER
Share capital N 22 37 16
Reserves B 23 157,386 63,416
Total equity R 157,423 63,432

The notes on pages 74 to 171 are an integral part of these FIAENTI BN ERBKRZERE B #RE
consolidated financial statements. B —&o ©
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
BREERRR

As at 31 December

M12A318
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&T
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B 26 665 1,012
Deferred income tax liabilities REFSHAE 27 15 174
680 1,186
Current liabilities RENEE
Amounts due to directors and ENEER
shareholders A% B I8 19 - 10,510
Amounts due to related parties FEAT AR 5 B 32 153 10,375
Trade payables B S ENRIE 28 6,892 3,090
Accruals and other payables ez & L E A fE TR 29 53,796 17,374
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFrEHH afE 6,151 5,164
Borrowings BN 26 8,282 17,511
75,274 64,024
Total liabilities HwWaE 75,954 65,210
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 233,377 128,642

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 171 were F69E 171 EMERE BB IRERE 201843 A
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were 28AKERSHEWNRERES -
signed on its behalf.

LAM Shun Chiu Dennis LI Xiaoting
PR IE 2 THIE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HiTEE

The notes on pages 74 to 171 are an integral part of these FIAE T BENMRTERZEGEPEHRE
consolidated financial statements. B —&5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREZBR

Statutory Share-
Share Other surplus based
capital Share reserve reserve  Exchange  payment  Retained
(Note22)  premium (Note23(a)) (Note23(b))  reserve  reserve  earnings
LR DYyl
A Hftrfte il RER
(Wi22)  RsE  (HE23(e) (HE220b)  HERE HIZRE REEA @3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Ti#n TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn Tin TiEn TiEn
As at 1 January 2016 R20165151A - - 50 1519 (2,027) - 67,406 66,948
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - - - 46,887 46,887
Other comprehensive loss ~ Eft2EE#E
ltems that may be EhAgETIEE
subsequently reclassified — Ez#aER
to profit or loss
Currency translation differences SME#E 28 - - - - (3,869) - - (3869)
Transactions with equity ~ EEHEHA
holders Hxs
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEZEFRA - - - 1,300 - - (1,300) -
Dividends paid (Note 25) BARE(F15E25) - - - - - - (46500)  (46,500]
Incorporation of the Company 22 &zHR AL 16 - - - - - - 16
Completion of Reorganisation  E4R5fK - - (50) - - - - (60)
As at 31 December 2016 7420165128318 16 - - 2,819 (5,896) - 66,493 63,432
As at 1 January 2017 R20175151A 16 - - 2,819 (5,896) - 66,493 63,432
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - - - 40127 40127
Other comprehensive loss  EM2EER
ltems that may be ERABETTEZ
subsequently reclassified  fEz81EA
to profit or loss
Currency translation differences JM&HZEE - - - - 5,588 - - 5,588
Transactions with equity ~ BEZEEA
holders HR%
Proceeds from shares issued #4713 TR 21 141,996 - - - - - 142017
Share-based payment AR BERNF - - - - - 6,259 - 6,259
Transfer to statutory reserve  BEZ LT[ - - - 2,673 - - (2,673) -
Dividends paid (Note 25) EARE(F3E25) = = = = = - (100,000) (100,000)
As at 31 December 2017  #201712A31H 37 141,996 - 5,492 (308) 6,259 3947 157423

The notes on pages 74 to 171 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FH&T

Cash flows from operating activities JE&EZBHFEESHE

Cash generated from operations KEMSHRE 30(a) 82,703 68,158
Income tax paid EAIFTER (17,219) (14,661)
Net cash generated from KRB TG

operating activities e FE 65,484 53,497

Cash flows from investing activities BR&EIBHHEELSRE

Purchase of property, plant and HBEWE  BE

equipment T (62,435) (11,247)
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEZ4#% - HE&

plant and equipment RAERTENRIA (3,152) (1,738)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (1,118) (13)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BE

plant and equipment KBTS 50E 30(b) 59 96
Interest received BUFE 877 747
Placement of pledged bank deposits 7B 3KIBERITI7 2k (8,000) -
Purchase of financial assets BERATERA

at fair value through profit or loss BRAOSHEE (27,706) (78,681)
Proceeds from financial assets BAFERA

at fair value through profit or loss Eanf el EEMSHIE 40,650 89,736
Advances to directors and shareholders 2t & = MR AR (29,041) (12,721)
Net cash used in investing activities RE&EZFEFMARLSEE (89,866) (13,821)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBI SR ETRE
Proceeds from borrowings EBRETEFE 30(d) 18,000 1,027
Repayments of borrowings BEER 30(d) (27,576) (15,814)
(Repayment to)/advance from (18:8), B\ —4%

a related party R HsE 7 Bk 30(d) (10,719) 6,810
(Repayment to)/advance from (1&3®),/ REBREREKR

shareholders and directors EEMBIR 30(d) (10,810) 5,861
Interest paid ERFAE (555) (932)
Listing costs paid and capitalised BEX M ERNEE ETHERA (3,760) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTN PRS0 142,017 -
Dividend paid BERIEE (65,387) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEEE,(FTA)

financing activities REFE 41,210 (3,048)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRRESEEIN

equivalents B hnFEE 16,828 36,628
Cash and cash equivalents at FURE R

beginning of the year BEEEM 58,760 23,348
Currency translation differences SN ERR 2,381 (1,216)
Cash and cash equivalents FREE X

at end of the year HeEEY 20 77,969 58,760

The notes on pages 74 to 171 are an integral part of these FBIAENTI BN RKZSHRE M B WRE
consolidated financial statements. B —&B5 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

74

GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1

1.2

General information

C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February
2016 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company'’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of ophthalmic services, sale of vision aid
and pharmaceutical products in Hong Kong (“HK")
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the
“Business”). The Company has been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 15 January 2018 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollar and all values are rounded to nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Reorganisation and changes in group
structure

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation as described
below (the “Reorganisation”) on 5 December
2016, the Business was carried out by subsidiaries
now comprising the Group, including Hong Kong
(International) Eye Care Group Limited, C-MER Vision
Limited and its subsidiary and Hong Kong C-MER
International Eye Care Group (China) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Operating Companies”).
Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. Ll is the controlling party of
the Operating Companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation and changes in group
structure (Continued)

In preparation for the Listing, the Reorganisation,
which principally involved the following steps, were
undergone:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

As of the date of incorporation of the Company
on 1 February 2016, the authorised share capital
of the Company was United States Dollar
("US$") 50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of
US$1.0 each. On the same date, one share
was subscribed by Harneys Services (Cayman)
Limited which was subsequently transferred to
C-MER Group Limited at the consideration of
US$1.0.

On 1 February 2016, 1,999 fully-paid shares of
the Company at total consideration of US$1,999
were issued and allotted to C-MER Group
Limited. The shareholders of C-MER Group
Limited are Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI who hold
1,400 and 600 issued shares respectively.

On 12 February 2016, C-MER Eye Care Group
Limited and C-MER Eye Care Medical Group
Limited were incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"”) with limited liabilities and
became wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

On 18 November 2016, Hong Kong (International)
Eye Care Group Limited issued 9,900 new shares
to C-MER Eye Care Medical Group Limited,
representing 99% of its shareholding thereafter.
The remaining 70 shares and 30 shares were
held by Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI respectively.

—RER - EARZ2IE

(@)

1.2 EAREEZEBEEE(®)

RERBLTMETHNEATES
K RBI8R :

(ii)

(iv)

RAR R B EI(AD
2016F2H1H) + &"NQ 7]
®) % 7E IR AR 250,000 7T
(IZ7T]) - $7%50,000A%
SRXEE.0E TG ©
[fl B ' Harneys Services
(Cayman) Limited 2 8% 1 8%
f&fn - HE1.0E TR
EEETHBEEEERA
7l o

R2016F281H » AR
MABEEBRARET
iR 8 1,9990% B #5 2 A Ik
15 BREAE1,999%FTT -
FHEEBRARMKRRK
BB A RFT L
2RI E1,4000% 600/%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

76

GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation and changes in group
structure (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

On 18 November 2016, C-MER Vision Limited
issued 9,900 new shares to C-MER Eye
Care Group Limited, representing 99% of its
shareholding thereafter. The remaining 70 shares
and 30 shares were held by Dr. Dennis LAM and
Ms. LI respectively.

On 18 November 2016, Hong Kong C-MER
International Eye Care Group (China) Limited
issued 450,000 new shares to C-MER Eye
Care Group Limited, representing 90% of its
shareholding thereafter. The remaining 49,999
shares and 1 share were held by Dr. Dennis LAM
and Ms. LI respectively.

On 5 December 2016, 70 shares and 30 shares
of Hong Kong (International) Eye Care Group
Limited were transferred to C-MER Eye Care
Medical Group Limited by Dr. Dennis LAM and
Ms. LI for a cash consideration of HK$70 and
HK$30 respectively. As a result, Hong Kong
(International) Eye Care Group Limited became
a wholly owned subsidiary of C-MER Eye Care
Medical Group Limited.

On 5 December 2016, 70 shares and 30 shares
of C-MER Vision Limited were transferred to
C-MER Eye Care Group Limited by Dr. Dennis
LAM and Ms. LI for a cash consideration of
HK$70 and HK$30 respectively. As a result,
C-MER Vision Limited became a wholly owned
subsidiary of C-MER Eye Care Group Limited.

On 5 December 2016, 49,999 shares and 1 share
of Hong Kong C-MER International Eye Care
Group (China) Limited were transferred to C-MER
Eye Care Group Limited by Dr. Dennis LAM and
Ms. LI for a cash consideration of HK$49,999
and HK$1 respectively. As a result, Hong Kong
C-MER International Eye Care Group (China)
Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary of
C-MER Eye Care Group Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

GENERAL INFORMATION, 1 —RER -BEAREINE

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF XE ()

PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.3 Basis of presentation 1.3 E2HEE
Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, R EMARIE - FTMESREE
the Business is held by the Operating Companies. NAFEA - RIBEH - EWFE
Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Business and B R EENREERNBWHAK
Operating Companies were transferred to and held by NEFFAR c REHAR - ARak
the Company. The Company has not been involved S M AEMEMERS  WAFE
in any other business prior to the Reorganisation EENTEE  c BAHEAETER
and does not meet the definition of a business. The MEHR I TIREEBEBSHNE
Reorganisation is merely a reorganisation of the I M E M EBHREES AR
Business with no change in management of such BAE - At AEBEREEAM
business and the ultimate owner of the Business EA WHRAEELAR FTEK
remain the same. Accordingly, the Group resulting HIEE - BEgtARESRMsS @ 886
from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuance S REIEBSBRARGANH
of the Business under the Operating Companies MERMEBETRENLEY - &
and, for the purpose of this annual report, the BEBRARNRMEVNMEFELRS
consolidated financial statements have been prepared AU HARB MR FEKER
and presented as a continuance of the consolidated BERERAMTENAEEEERE
financial statements of the Operating Companies, & o

with the assets and liabilities of the Group recognised
and measured at the carrying amount of the Business
under the consolidated financial statements of the
Operating Companies for all years presented.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised SEARRZHNRZS - HeRlk
gains/losses on transactions between group RBHRE R BIENE G
companies are eliminated on consolidation. BT LA 8 o
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTTHEHRE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation RAG A BERFTREZE et
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below. BRSO - R BIEAHE
These policies have been consistently applied to all the ON  BREERERNNEE L
years and periods presented, unless otherwise stated. RSB -
2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE
The consolidated financial statements have been REMBMRDIZRBRE B ZETRD
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial re((EF8e:tmAag )BEHEN
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the BB BHREER ([ BB BHR
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants SRR NDIRR - SEMBHRKRIE
(the "HKICPA") and have been prepared under E S AER MG - WE IR AF
the historical cost convention, as modified by the Bt NEmmeREE(EAF
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through BYR)NEGMELBE

profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

78

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or areas when assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following amendments to standards
have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2017:

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

2

FESHTBEBE W)

2.1

mBLERE (®)

BREBMBREENERELRS
MBERBERETEER
it EREEEAREEE K
REFTBIEL A - P RE SR
JZ B0 ) B S A1 R SRR SRR
RiGFTHERAUBERBERY
LM HEWENES -

2.1.1 Bt BRI EHIZ 5

(@)  AEBE R T
K AAE TR

AREEER2017F1 8
1HRENMBEE
EORER LT E 8
BIEE] -

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses
BBGETERIE 125 (IBFTA) MR R EERRELEHIBEE

HKAS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 12 (Amendment)

The adoption of the above amendments
did not have any significant impact to the
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFHBER#BEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B BERBEENEE
(Continued) (#&)
(b) New and amended standards not yet (b) HARERNBFTET &
adopted s ET 2R
The following new standards, amendments I TREBEMBER
and interpretation to standards which 2018F1A1HZk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” replaces
the whole of HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 has three
financial asset classification categories
for investments in debt instruments:
amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI"”) and fair
value through profit or loss. Classification
is driven by the entity’'s business model
for managing the debt instruments and
their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Investments in equity instruments are
always measured at fair value. However,
management can make an irrevocable
election to present changes in fair value in
OClI, provided the instrument is not held for
trading. If the equity instrument is held for
trading, changes in fair value are presented
in profit or loss. For financial liabilities there
are two classification categories: amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss.
Where non-derivative financial liabilities are
designated at fair value through profit or
loss, the changes in the fair value due to
changes in the liability’s own credit risk are
recognised in OCI, unless such changes
in fair value would create an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case,
all fair value movements are recognised
in profit or loss. There is no subsequent
recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or
loss. For financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivative financial liabilities), all
changes in fair value are presented in profit
or loss. HKFRS 9 introduces a new model
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

for the recognition of impairment losses
- the expected credit losses (ECL) model,
which constitutes a change from the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
contains a ‘three stage’ approach, which
is based on the change in credit quality of
financial assets since initial recognition.
Assets move through the three stages
as credit quality changes and the stages
dictate how an entity measures impairment
losses and applies the effective interest
rate method. The new rules mean that on
initial recognition of a non-credit impaired
financial asset carried at amortised cost
a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL
is recognised in profit or loss. In the case
of accounts receivables this day-1 loss
will be equal to their lifetime ECL. Where
there is a significant increase in credit risk,
impairment is measured using lifetime
ECL rather than 12-month ECL. HKFRS 9
applies to all hedging relationships, with
the exception of portfolio fair value hedges
of interest rate risk. The new guidance
better aligns hedge accounting with the
risk management activities of an entity and
provides relief from the more “rule-based”
approach of HKAS 39.

Based on the assessments undertaken
to date, the Group considers that there
will be no material adverse change in
the credit risks in respect of the Group's
future financial assets and the adoption of
the new ECL model under HKFRS 9 will
not have significant impact on its financial
performance and position.

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements. It is
effective for first interim period of the
financial year commencing on or after 1
January 2018. The Group has not early
adopted this new standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

82

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS
11 Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition.
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to
recognise revenue and how much revenue
to recognise through a 5-step approach: (1)
Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2)
Identify separate performance obligations
in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction
price; (4) Allocate transaction price to
performance obligations; and (5) Recognise
revenue when performance obligation
is satisfied. The core principle is that a
company should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. It
moves away from a revenue recognition
model based on an ‘earnings processes
to an ‘asset-liability’ approach based on
transfer of control. HKFRS 15 provides
specific guidance on capitalisation of
contract cost and licence arrangements. It
also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity’'s contracts
with customers. The Group has performed
assessment on the adoption of HKFRS 15
and the result indicated that the impact
on the Group's financial statements are
not expected to be significant other than
changes on the disclosure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 is effective for first interim
period of the financial year commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. The Group has not
early adopted this new standard.

HKFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the
definition of a lease, recognition and
measurement of leases and establishes
principles for reporting useful information
to users of financial statements about
the leasing activities of both lessees and
lessors. A key change arising from HKFRS
16 is that most operating leases will be
accounted for on balance sheet for lessees.
The standard replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

84

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

The Group is a lessee of various properties
which are currently classified as operating
leases. The Group’'s current accounting
policy for such leases is set out in Note
2.24 under which operating lease payment
is accounted for in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
when incurred and the Group’'s future
operating lease commitments are not
reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets but are disclosed in Note 31. As
of 31 December 2017, the Group's total
operating lease commitments amounted to
HK$142,086,000. HKFRS 16 provides new
provisions for the accounting treatment of
leases and all non-current leases, including
future operating lease commitments, must
be recognised in the form of an asset (for
the right of use) and a financial liability (for
the payment obligation). Short-term leases
of less than twelve months and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from the
reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in assets
and financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets. Operating expenses under
otherwise identical circumstances will
decrease, and depreciation, amortisation
and interest expense will increase. It is
expected that certain portion of these
lease commitments will be required to be
recognised in the balance sheets as right of
use assets and lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

The new standard is effective for first
interim period of the financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective
date.

For the other amendments to standards
presented, management is in the process
of making an assessment of the likely
impact of these changes but is not yet in
a position to state whether any substantial
changes to the Group's significant
accounting policies and/or the presentation
of its financial statements will result.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

86

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combination

Except for Reorganisation, the Group applies
the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEEEw)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 MIBARIGE)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 ZZAEARE)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Intra-group transactions, balances, and unrealised
gains or losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

88

2.2

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKS$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other gains, net'.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy), that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Medical equipment 5-10 years
BRI 5E104
Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
PAREREFERE 54
Computer equipment 3-b years
BIERE 3ELF
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
= EN TS

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly comprise acquired computer
software.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
the specific software into usage. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years. Cost associated
with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(i)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables and at fair value through profit or
loss. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Classification (Continued)

(a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables”, “amount due from a director
and shareholder”, “amounts due from
related parties”, "“pledged bank deposits”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated balance sheets (notes 2.13
and 2.14).

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets designated
in this category. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-
current. The Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise “key
management insurance contract” which
includes both investment and insurance
elements and “structured bank deposits”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of investments
are recognised on the trade-date being the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The key management insurance contract
is initially recognised at the consideration paid
and subsequently carried at fair values at the
end of each reporting period (Note 21). Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss"” category are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains, net” in the period in
which they arise.

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities at
amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value net
of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
other financial liabilities using the effective interest
method.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group's other financial liabilities mainly comprise
“amounts due to directors and shareholders”,
“amounts due to related parties”, “trade payables”,
“accruals and other payables” and “borrowings” in
the consolidated balance sheets.

Other financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at

amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a "loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEHREE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211 BUBEEASIRNEHEE

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at

amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from clients,
commercial companies and local government for
services rendered and goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturity of 3
months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transactions costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

As the Group does not have any qualifying assets,
all borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

98

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares for
a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the statement of profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding
credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.22 Provision for reinstatement cost

Provision for reinstatement cost is included in other
payables and represents the present value of the
estimated cost for the restoration work of the Group's
leased premises agreed to be carried out upon the
expiry of the relevant leases using a risk-free pre-
tax interest rate. The provision has been determined
by the directors based on their best estimates. The
related reinstatement costs, upon initial recognition,
have been included as leasehold improvements in the
consolidated balance sheets (note 2.5).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEHREE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition 2.23 R

The Group's revenue is primarily derived from providing
ophthalmic services, sales of pharmaceuticals and
sales of vision aid products.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services rendered, stated
net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities, as described below. For sales
of goods, the Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
clients, the type of transactions and the specifics of
each arrangement.

(a) Provision of ophthalmic services

Revenue from ophthalmic services is recognised
when the related services are rendered and
when it is probable that the economic benefits
from the services rendered will flow to the Group
and such benefit could be reliably measured.

(b) Sales of vision aid products

Revenue from sales of vision aid products
is recognised at the point that the risks and
rewards of the inventory have passed to the
clients, which is the point of despatch.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(d) Management fee income

Revenue from management fee services is
recognised when the related services are
rendered and when it is probable that the
economic benefits from the services rendered
will flow to the Group and such benefit could be
reliably measured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other long-term payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance
department under the supervision of the Board of
directors. The Board provides principles for overall risk
management.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument fluctuates
because of the changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The subsidiaries at the Group mainly
operate in HK and the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in HK$ and Renminbi
("RMB"), respectively. Foreign exchange
rate risk arises when recognised financial
assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

As at 31 December 2017, the financial
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
of the Group in HK and PRC are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB, respectively
(2016: same).

The Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign exchange
risk profile, and will consider appropriate
hedging measures in the future, as may be
necessary.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant
impact resulted from the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
mainly arises from cash at banks and bank
borrowings at floating interest rates. As at
31 December 2017, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$239,000
higher/lower (2016: HK$62,000 higher/
lower), mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank balances and borrowings.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk
mainly arises from finance lease liabilities at
fixed interest rates. The interest rate profile
of the Group’s finance lease liabilities is
disclosed in Note 26.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a director and shareholder,
amounts due from related parties, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheets.

The credit risk of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits are limited because the
counterparties are state-owned or reputable
commercial banks which are high-credit-quality
financial institutions located in HK and the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group, being a provider of ophthalmic
services to patients, has a highly diversified
client base, without any single client contributing
material revenue. Moreover, some of the Group's
revenue is settled by reputable commercial
companies and local government on behalf
of patients. The Group has controls to closely
monitor the patients’ billing and payment status
by communication with commercial companies
and local government to minimise the credit risk.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit quality of deposits and other
receivables, amount due from a director and
shareholder and amounts due from related
parties have been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties
default and financial position of the counterparty.
Management does not believe the credit risk
in relation to the related parties are significant,
considering the existing related parties do not
have defaults in the past and management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by
these related parties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities from
leading banks and the ability to close out market
position.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain assets
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances,
committed credit lines available and interest
bearing borrowings which enable the Group to
continue its business for the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEBEZEE)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheets date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table were
the contractual undiscounted cash flows and
the earliest date the Group can be required
to pay. Balance within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as impact at discounting is not

(c)

B mE ()

TROMAEERIE B
AEERABRHEAN
[Em B e HEE N R
HEIHRENNEREA
B RPBEENSEAR
MEANRERERLE
| T BE A B S TR R R
BE - R EL T
BAR BT ZEARKE

significant. ERENHEAREASER ©
Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain BEEEmMs r REAEAHR
a repayment on demand clause which can be $R1T

exercised at the banks' sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lender were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effort. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

2RRBITENZE
SRR G RITRER
TROMTIRIE AR B 7
B SR (B EFRATT
155 PIVBRF 6 W 50 R 0 48R 1R £1F
)R FHRYI RS
M o A RITE R R
HIRDMIIRERT 8 E
KA HRE -

Between
(0])] Within 1and 2
demand 1year years Total
RER —ER —ZME £t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TER TAT TEx
As at 31 December 2017 R2017612A318
Amounts due to related parties e R 7 708 153 - - 153
Trade payables B S ENTUR - 6,892 - 6,892
Accruals and other payables JEStE AR b E 2R
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TeEELRERE) - 45,737 - 45,737
Bank borrowings RITIER 8,000 - - 8,000
Finance lease liabilities WEHEAR - 305 686 991
8,153 52,934 686 61,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HRERER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEBEEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEMEERE(HE)

On

demand

BB
HK$'000

BT

Within
1 year
—FR
HK$'000

N
BTL

Between

1and?2
years Total
~Zfi% At
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT

As at 31 December 2016 #2016%12A31H
Amounts due to directors and ENEZRRRFE

shareholders 10,510 - - 10,510
Amounts due to related parties e BAR T 10,375 - - 10,375
Trade payables B SR - 3,090 - 3,090
Accruals and other payables [EAtE R REMENTE

(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TMeEREeREE) - 13,233 - 13,233
Bank borrowings RITER 11,144 - - 11,144
Finance lease liabilities HEHEARE - 6,504 1,056 7,560

32,029 22,827 1,056 55,912

The table below analyses the bank borrowings

TROMEE RIZESKIEFNRRE

of the Group into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of the

ENERT  AEBERBHBESHR
EAMEMRBHNST RSO SEH

reporting period to the contractual maturity date
without taking into consideration the effect of
the clause of repayment on demand.

Within
1 year

—R
HK$'000
TEx

Between
1and 2
years
—Z@WE
HK$'000
TER

2H BRIV IRITER o

Between

2and5
years Total
MERE &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEx

As at 31 December 2017 1#2017%12R31A
Bank borrowings BITIER 8,174 = = =
As at 31 December 2016 1420165124318
Bank borrowings BITER 4,792 2,636 4,393 11,821
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.3

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses borrowings to finance its operations.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheets) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the consolidated balance sheets, plus net
debt, where applicable.

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio is not
applicable due to net cash position (2016: same).

Fair value estimation

The carrying values of the Group’s current financial
assets, including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from a director and
shareholder, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents,
and the Group's current financial liabilities, including
trade payables, accruals and other payables, amounts
due to directors and shareholders, amounts due to
related parties and borrowings approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKRRERE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMETHE)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TREZRFAELATFEABAGERE
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December A BEHEREAREEN2017F
2017 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used 12 A3 BRAFEARN ST
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into EETON - ZEHAEBERATF
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: EBRF D AN T ={ERLH
o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HREEHBENERT
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BB CREFHARE) (F1
&) o
° Inputs other than quoted prices included within ° BEXBEITEE(AE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or 1) sk (AR ERET)
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or RN AE (B 1RATE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). FERERERRIN) (E24)) °
o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based e EBEEXKBGBWIFENITE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable RisEENRAEBIT
inputs) (level 3). ATEREAE) (B3R) °

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE H28 B3R A%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THEL TR

As at 31 December 2017 R2017F128318

Financial assets at fair value through 1A TEzT ABSH

profit or loss SREAE
- Structured bank deposits —~BERERITER = 60 = 60
As at 31 December 2016 ®2016%12A31R

Financial assets at fair value through ~ 1RATEsH A BRH)

profit or loss CREE
- Unlisted insurance policy investments  —3F LR EHE - - 5,205 5,205
- Structured bank deposits ~EREBRIER - 12,232 - 12,232

- 12,232 5,205 17,437
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

3

112

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no transfers between levels during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm's length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included
inlevel 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
the instrument.

Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not

based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° Cash surrender value for the insurance
policy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The unlisted insurance policy investment in
level 3 represents key management insurance
contract (Note 21). The fair value of the key
management insurance contract is determined
by reference to the cash surrender value of the
insurance policy.

Based on historical change in the cash surrender
value of the insurance policy, there is an average
increase in cash surrender value of approximately
2% per annum. Applying this percentage of
increase/decrease in the cash surrender value,
the Group's profit for the year and retained
earnings would be increased/decreased by
approximately HK$104,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of trade receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market
condition, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provisions at
each balance sheet date.

R B RRME

BREREREm
3.3 AREMEF @)
(c) FIAZIRHEBTEE)

E=MIFLTRBRIRE
BREZETBEEERR
BH(MFE21) - FEEE
ERBRAHONAFELSR
EREZERASEEE

.
TE °

RIBREZRRESEE
WES #e  RIRIVSE
ESFFIEINN2% -
NZBERR S EERE
i m A Bl TR E
REBBFAFEARRE
BFREE2016F12 A
31 IEFEE N RADL
104,000/ 7T °

4 EERETHEFRHE

R B TS SRR P AR B A 5 B H B RS A
EITRE - YABELREEMER
RER(BEAEREER TEHARREMS
S IETEE) -

AEBERREHGET REBR - B
SRHEA  AEMEEER - B2 RN
ENERGERER - L TwmdBHEE
RiagsI AR T EAVBEEHEE
RAEMNEREEFDEAENMGT
iR e

(a) EZEUFHERE

AEEE IR B U AT Y ]
REMRG  BEEE S RUK
THERERE © ZAETDERE
EFREMEHABEEELCE
RIRET TR - I ZEE A A K Ak
it e EEERSHEERER TG
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

114

(b)

(c)

(d)

Income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in HK and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are some
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Share-based payment

The Group has awarded equity instruments to eligible
directors, senior management, ophthalmologists,
physicians, employees and consultants. The Group
has used binomial option pricing model to determine
the total fair value of the equity instruments awarded.
Significant estimates on key assumptions are required
to be made by the Company in determining the fair
value of the equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

e RBRRME

5 WHEKkDHER

(a)

Wy #8

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000

THETT

201745
HK$°000
FET

Provision of ophthalmic services IR ELAR TS 291,076 234,391
Sales of vision aid products HER NTHEE M 20,152 14,268
311,228 248,659

(b) Segment information (b) ZHEBEHR

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to making strategic
decisions. The chief operating decision-maker is
identified as the executive directors of the Company.
The executive directors consider the business from a
client perspective and assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on segment revenue
and segment results for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance. These reports
are prepared on the same basis as these consolidated
financial statements.

Management considers the business is mainly located
in HK and the PRC, which the revenue and segment
results are determined by the geographical location
in which the client is operated. Management has
therefore identified the reportable segment based on
the Group’s geographic perspective, namely HK and
the PRC.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Other income, other gains, net, listing expenses,
finance expenses, and income tax expense are not
included in segment results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WaEksHBER @

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZPBERE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HZE2017F12A31HIEFER
2017 are as follows: DEEEHTIOT

Year ended 31 December 2017

BZE2017F12A31A LFE

HK PRC Total

B Y &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FERT FHET

Segment revenue PaR:itgs 189,507 121,721 311,228
Gross profit ER 66,722 68,709 135,431
Selling expenses PHERMK (796) (10,467) (11,263)
Administrative expenses TR > (16,773) (26,811) (43,584)
Segment results DERELE 49,153 31,431 80,584
Other income Hiplg A 2,407
Listing expenses WX (24,160)
Other gains, net H Uy 25 F 58 210
Finance expenses g3 (555)
Profit before income tax b B S HL Bl A B 58,486
Income tax expense FrS TR (18,359)
Profit for the year FRFE 40,127

Other segment information HibpHER

Additions to non-current assets KB IEREIEE 9,784 75,385 85,169
Depreciation and amortisation TE R (4,804) (3,774) (8,578)
Losses on disposal of property, HEWZE - HEK&

plant and equipment, net RGPS R TE (63) - (63)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

2016 are as follows:

HK$'000

e RBRRME

Wiz Ko EBER @)

(b) ZEER(E)

HE2016F12A31BILFEH
DEBELEE YT ¢

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE
HK PRC Total

B h At

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

Segment revenue PaR:itigs 161,168 87,491 248,659
Gross profit EF 50,093 44,883 94,976
Selling expenses HEMZ (664) (7,210) (7,874)
Administrative expenses TR (11,218) (19,316) (30,534)
Segment results DEPELE 38,211 18,357 56,568
Other income EAbA 1,497
Other gains, net H Uy 25 F 58 1,463
Finance expenses BRI (932)
Profit before income tax B 1S R A A 58,696
Income tax expense FiSFiF (11,709)
Profit for the year R F3E 46,887
Other segment information HittpEHER
Additions to non-current assets KB IETREIEE 9,347 3,262 12,609
Depreciation and amortisation TE R (6,167) (6,251) (12,418)
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE - BE &

plant and equipment, net B RS e 59 - 59

No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the

executive directors.

There is no single external client contributed more
than 10% to the Group’s revenue for the year ended

31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

BRI ERRARTESERED
WEERBBEIH - RAEZT

ZEH -

REZE2017F12 831 B ItF
B HMEEIIBEFERN
W AEBERZEM10% A £
(20164F « &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

6 OTHERINCOME 6 HywA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Management fee income BEREBIWA 616 688
Interest from bank deposits IRITIFEFAE 877 747
Others Hith 914 62
2,407 1,497
7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HitWRHFEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016

20175 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000

Fi#5 FET

(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEWE « MENL&E

plant and equipment, net Fif5 (E518),Wes F58 (63) 59

Gains on financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRS
through profit or loss SRBEEEENNE 681 595
Exchange (losses)/gains, net [EH (&), WS FE8E (408) 809
210 1,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Amortisation of intangible assets

(Note 14)

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (Note 13)
Doctors’ consultation fees

Cost of inventories and consumables

(Note 15)

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)

Rental expenses
Legal and professional fees
Listing expenses

Share option expenses to doctors and

consultants

A Y
(M¥5E14)
1% BB B
— RS
—IEER RS
ME - BEREETE
(FfiEE13)
BEDS
FERFEMRA
(B$5E15)
EEEFFEL (M)
HEEM
FEREEER
ETEA
7B A N ER R Y B AR
EEMRY

8

EMEEINER
Year ended 31 December

HZE12H31BLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
177 149
1,900 750
171 56
8,401 12,269
68,5635 64,580
39,773 31,437
52,984 43,729
21,843 19,969
1,713 657
24,160 -
5,339 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EEENFE
(BREEEME)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000

THTT

20174
HK$°000
FET

120

Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T& - ¥4 - JE4T K& I£AL 47,750 39,738

Retirement benefit costs — defined RINEFIBN A — EER T2l
contribution schemes (Note (i)) (BEEG) 2,682 2,068
Staff welfare and benefits B TR EFE 1,632 1,923
Share option expenses BRI 920 -
52,984 43,729

Note:

(i)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
SCHEMES

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. the Group contributes a certain percentage of
the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-managed
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month effective since 1 June 2014, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEREANEX

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (BREEEMS) @)

(Continued)

(a) Directors and Chief Executive Officer’'s (a) EERTHAZMS
emoluments

The remunerations of each director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out below:

AEESEZRITHRAHNER
201712 B 31 H 1 F [ 5 5 B
HwT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,

Fees

fig
HK$'000
TEn

whether of the Group, the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REEES(FRRARE  A0AGANBAINES WAL RENERIRNABAZALRHE

Salaries

#e
HK$'000
TEn

Discretionary
bonuses

BEtA
HKS'000
TR

Allowances
and benefits
in kind

2HR
ROEA
HK$'000
TE

Employer's
contribution
to

a retirement
benefit
scheme
)
EfEAE
fEdfft
HKS'000
T

Share-
hased
payment

WhhA
EBAHAR
HK$'000
T

o
HK§'000
7

Year ended 31 December 2017 BENNERRNBLEE
Executive directors #77EE
Dr. Dennis LAM (Chief Executive Officer] BB (74
Note i) (B - 349 - - 5 - 3501
Ms. LI (Note i) () - 1200 - 1 18 = 1,959
Wr. LI Chun Shan (Note (i) BRI - a8 - - - % 510
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Note i) BRI 12 - - - - 1579 1591
Independent non-executive directors EUHiES
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam HmEs 12 = - - - - 12
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald TEERE 12 = = - - - 12
Mir. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung BREEE 12 - - - - - 12
M, CHAN ChiLeong BEsgs 2 - - - - - 1
Mis. BENTLEY Annie Liang %At 12 - - - - - 12
n 5,180 - ™ PA] 1,605 7621
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEN6E12ANBLEE
Executive directors HnEE
Dr. Dennis LAM (Chief Executive Officer) ~ HIEHZ 4 (175485
(Note {i) (FzEm) - 6,624 - - 12 - 6,636
Ms. LI (Note il ERL (M) - 152 - 0 17 - 2062
Wr. LI Chun Shan (Note (i) BRI () - 411 6 - - - 474
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Note i) AR (i) - - - - - _ -
- 8,560 63 720 29 - 9372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

122

(a)

Directors and Chief Executive Officer’s
emoluments (Continued)

The remunerations of each director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out below: (Continued)

Note:

(i) The remuneration of Dr. Dennis LAM shown in the tables
represents remuneration received and receivable from the
Group by him in his capacities as a director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and an ophthalmologist to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
same).

(ii) The remunerations of Ms. LI and Mr. LI Chun Shan shown
in the tables represent remuneration received and receivable
from the Group by them in their capacities as directors of
the Company and employees to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

(iii) The remunerations of Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent represent
remunerations received and receivable from the Group
by him in his capacity as a director of the Company since
the appointment on 28 June 2017. During the year ended
31 December 2017, Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent received
doctors’ consultation fees of HK$14,801,000 (2016:
HK$17,451,000). During the year ended 31 December 2017,
total share option expenses to Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent
amounted to HK$2,343,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
aggregate amounts of remuneration including
fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses, allowances
and benefits in kind, employer’s contribution to a
retirement benefit scheme, share-based payment and
doctors’ consultation fees which were paid by the
Group to the directors were HK$23,186,000 (2016:
HK$26,823,000).

Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI were appointed as the
Company'’s executive directors on 1 February 2016.

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent and Mr. LI Chun Shan were
appointed as the Company's executive directors on 28
June 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B RRME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEAEX

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (BRERESEME) @)

(Continued)

(a) Directors and Chief Executive Officer's (a) EERTHAZMES (H)
emoluments (Continued)
Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam, Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald, RRrEL TEHRELS - FR
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. CHAN Chi Leong FERE BRESEERRLIRL
and Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang were appointed as the +H2017F10B19REL T A
Company's independent non-executive directors on 19 RNABVELIEMITES -
October 2017.
No remunerations are paid or receivables in respect of REZE2017F12 A31 H IEF
accepting office as director during the year ended 31 - BMEFEEMNESTEIS MY
December 2017 (2016: nil). ek RN EI B & (20164 : f&) o
No emoluments are paid or receivable in respect REZE2017F12 A31 B IEF
of directors’ other services in connection with the E - BMEREEAEEREARQAK
management of the affairs of the Company or its HEWB AR EHBmEEa =
subsidiary undertaking during the year ended 31 PR 75 ifn 2 1+ sk FE Uk 9 B 2 (2016
December 2017 (2016: nil). F o 4E) e
No director waived or agreed to waive any REZE2017F12 A31HIEF
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2017 E o ESEENESRENEL
(2016: nil). W& (20164 « £) -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no REE2017F12 831 H IEF
retirement benefits, payments or benefits in respect E BERRIEERERES
of termination of directors’ services were paid or EESEE N SEL A RKE
made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are A~ IFREARH] - TR AR B
any payable (2016: nil). No consideration was provided B ENZIE(20164F « £) o
to or receivable by third parties for making available BEGESEEREMAE =7
directors’ services (2016: nil). 12 {3 B ok FE 15 55 = T A9 3R B

(20164 : £%) °

There is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing REE2017F12 831 B IEF
arrangements in favour of the directors, or controlled - HENESEAZTHREE
body corporates and connected entities of such REZBERBEEREATTARN
directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 EX EERNEMTZLH
(2016: nil). (20164 : #E) ©
No significant transactions, arrangements and ARAREF VB AEBEEKR
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which B mARRESERNEPEE
the Company was a party and in which a director of IHEREEEAER - EREZE
the Company had material interest, whether directly 2017512 B31HILEEF R
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any MDA TENEARS
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: ZHERA#(2016%5F : £E) o
nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEAMEX
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (BREEMWE) @
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBEESHHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the REZE2017F12 A31HIEF
highest amongst the directors and employees in B AEEEENEEFTHNRSL
the Group include three directors, Dr. LEE Yau ReFMATBEE=28F (=
Wing Vincent, Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI, whose HEEsEE « MIEEE KT L
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented 1) FENFHRERE EXZ2
above for the year ended 31 December 2017. The SIEI ST - REIZE2017F12 A
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals JNALEFE BB TWAAL
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: HE ST I T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LLFE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Wages, salaries, bonuses, and T& - &&  EAKER 1,122 1,452

allowances
Pension costs [N AN - 17
Share-based payments AR AR AR 2,342 -
3,464 1,469
The emoluments fell within the following bands: A TEHEA

Number of individuals
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164
Emolument bands (in HK$) N E BT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 F21,000,000/7T - 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,008 TE
1,500,0005% 7T 1 -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 87T E
2,500,000 7T 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEAEX
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (BEEEMS) @
(Continued)

(c) Senior management (c) SREERE
The remuneration of the members of the senior REE2017F12831HIEFE
management by band for the year ended 31 December REMARIE D 2 2B EERERK
2017 is set forth below; SHEIEL T

Number of

In the band of £ el individuals

AE

Below HK$1,000,001 1,000,001 7L AT 2

10 FINANCE EXPENSES 10 Bri5REX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T

Interest expense on borrowings B F B 555 932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

11

126

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2016: 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Under the new Corporate Income Tax Law, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong for dividend which arises from
profit of foreign investment enterprises earned after 1
January 2008 at a tax rate of 5%.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

11 FrIBFiRxX

REZE2017F12A3NBILEFE - &
RS EIRGEFERRAEN
16.5% (20164 : 16.5% )5t -

REZE2017F12831HIEFE » K
EEPEMBRAENEAREE25%
(2016%F : 25%) °

REBFEEMETE - REBEBEMMA
SRSMNE IR E B AN E (2702008
F1ATH RO A B E LS
RIS % BN E RIS ©

kGt a2 ERERNBIR
TEA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT

Current income tax BUERFR1SBE

— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 9,300 7,482
- PRC enterprise income tax — SR 9,189 5,280
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 241 -
Deferred income tax (Note 27) RIEFTSBL(MFE27) (371) (1,053)
Income tax expense FriSFiR X 18,359 11,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FEHMA<w
7 gk L 715 ¢ 4 ) 98 0 o T 6
B AR B D A I T B S
BEOERYENZRNT -

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group
companies as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit before income tax bR Fr S 8L A A1 B 58,486 58,596
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate REARSAAERY
applicable to profits in respective FEE R KT ETIE
jurisdictions 12,099 11,188
Tax effects of: TH BRI E
Income not subject to tax RN (138) (280)
Expenses not deductible for taxation GIE b3
purpose 4,296 801
Tax losses not recognised REEZTTEER 1,585 -
Withholding tax on royalty income BRI ARTEINF 276 -
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERETR 241 -
Income tax expense s> 18,359 11,709

HZE2017F12 831 B It FE R 0#E
S B R A20.7% (2016 £ -
19.1%) ©

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2017 was 20.7% (2016: 19.1%).

There was no material fluctuation in the weighted average EEFRAL - BE2017F12A318 1k
applicable tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2017 FEMMETHEAT X J/E KRR
compared to last year. g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 EREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FBRERBFIZANGIESES
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AFEETERR AT BT E @A
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in B EETE -
issue.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2017 2016
20174 20164

Profit attributable to equity holders  ERAAR#Ez=IFE A

of the Company during the year FEAEFIE
(HK$'000) (FA&mx) 40,127 46,887
Weighted average number of BETE AR INETHE
ordinary shares in issue 769,287,977 722,679,109
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &H&EARZF GEL) 5.22 6.49
Note: s
(i) The earnings per share as presented above is calculated (i) ERMIERBMNDEEE
using the weighted average number of 769,287,977 (2016: 201712 A31 B IEFER %
722,679,109) ordinary shares deemed to be in issue for B 17189769,287,977 % (2016
the year ended 31 December 2017. In determining the F 1 722,679,109 8% ) L 3@ % A0
weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed to be RETHEEE - BERESET
in issue, the bonus elements of the shares issued in 2016, LB MEFEHEE B8
2017 and 2018 as detailed in Note 22(b), Note 22(c) and 201641 A1 B & 20164 -
Note 36(a), respectively, have been taken into account since 2017 K% 2018F B 8T D HY
1 January 2016. A EZ - FEDRERM T

22(b) ~ Mi5E22(c) K2 FH5E36(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 BRER @
(b) Diluted (b) %8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting H&%%%%\Jiﬂﬁi%ﬁaﬁ@ﬁﬁiﬁ
the weighted average number of ordinary shares ﬁ%%’gﬁmiﬁﬁi ) jzﬂiﬂ‘ﬂ
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive %%T{?QJ\W%@&WM%$%
potential ordinary shares. During the year ended BUETTRIE - m@§2017¢12
31 December 2017, the Group has one (2016: nil) ASTALFE - $%ﬂﬁ;fﬁ
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares. E2016¢ R RRERE NN R
\Q °
For the pre-IPO share options, the number of shares ’%Emﬁ\ﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%;
included as below is the number of shares that are L/{Tﬁf[%wx{?%a\f’%’gﬂ%“
dilutive and would have been outstanding assuming rﬁjg@ffﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬂ{éﬁéﬁﬁ
the completion of the share issue to the grantees. SMEBRAEE -

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31HLLEE

2017 2016
20174 20164

Profit attributable to equity holders ~ ERZANATIHEZZEA

of the Company during the year FEMS T

(HK$'000) (FA&mx) 40,127 46,887
Weighted average number of BRI TE AN T8

ordinary shares in issue 769,287,977 722,679,109
Adjustments for: BTN ZIBELAE

— impact of the pre-IPO share — B RAFREERIERE

option scheme eI E 10,613,634 -

Weighted average number of AR EERES BT

ordinary shares for diluted g ERREE

earnings per share 779,901,611 722,679,109
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & R&#EEZ R (G51L) 5.15 6.49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERRE
Office
Medical Leasehold furniture Computer Motor  Construction
equipment improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
HAKER
Bk HENRiE BERE B e ERIR &zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn TEn TEn TR TEn Tén TR
At 1 January 2016 R20165181A
Cost iR 17,952 2,7% 2,022 1383 - 60,152
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (14,478) (12,002) (1,50) (1,341) (528) - (29.854)
Net book amount e 21522 5,950 1,290 681 855 - 30,298

Year ended 31 December 2016 BENI6E12RNALEE

Opening net book amount ENEETE 21522 5,950 1,290 681 855 - 30298
Additions RE 7104 4,29 368 3n 437 - 12,596
Disposals e (37) - - - - - 37)
Depreciation i3 (5,903) (4,933) (615) (428) (390) - (12.269)
Currency translation differences IEHEEE 877) ) (48) 9) 132) - 1,038)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 21,809 5,239 1,015 617 870 - 29,550
At 31 December 2016 20165128318
Cost i 41,632 21,640 3,078 2334 1,773 - 70,457
Accumulated depreciation 2iE 19,823) 16,401) (2,063) (1,717) 903) - (40,907)
Net hook amount FOFE 21,809 5,239 1,015 617 870 - 29,550

Year ended 31 December 2017 BENTENRENBLEE

Opening net hook amount ENEETE 21,809 5,239 1,015 617 870 - 29550
Additions RE 51,054 3,376 8N 1,536 - 21,214 84,051
Disposals hirt=3 (122) - - - - - (122)
Depreciation e (5,078) (2,179) (514) (288) (342) - (8.401)
Currency translation differences NEHREEE 2,843 40 57 61 37 1,063 410
Closing net book amount ERERFE 70,506 6,476 1429 1926 565 28211 109,179
At 31 December 2017 20175125318
Cost KR 95,911 25,833 4103 4,010 1,843 28211 159,977
Accumulated depreciation Z:HE (25,405) (19,357) (2,674) (2,084) (1,278) - (50,798)
Net book amount EEFE 70,506 6,476 1429 1,926 565 28,217 109,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERZE®
(Continued)
Depreciation expense charged in the consolidated statement REEE2ERERNBRNITEE A
of comprehensive income is as follows: HIEn

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx Tt
Cost of revenue HER A 6,956 9,614
Administrative expenses TR 1,445 2,655
8,401 12,269
Motor vehicles and medical equipment includes the HENEEREETEANTS%E - Hih
following amounts where the Group is a lessee under RNEEAMEREE NHAFHEA -

finance leases:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2017 AONNG]
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Cost-capitalised finance leases A — ERNERERE 4,240 26,213
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (3,105) (12,913)
Net book amount BRI E 1,135 13,300
The Group leases various motor vehicles and medical AEERBETTHEREESHBZER
equipment under non-cancellable finance lease agreements. EETAEREERE - HHANTIE
The lease terms are between 3 and 5 years, and 5% - BIEBIEEMBRENEHBEAR &
substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of EIREE FEEBEARER -

the underlying assets have been transferred to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BREEE
Total
#mat
HK$'000
FHExT
At 1 January 2016 "R2016F1H1H
Cost B AR 1,899
Accumulated amortisation REHEE (297)
1,602
Year ended 31 December 2016 BZ2016F12A31HLFE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE 1,602
Additions nNE 13
Amortisation #iE (149)
Currency translation differences INEHR B =R (59)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 1,407
At 31 December 2016 720165F12H31H
Cost B AR 1,829
Accumulated amortisation HETHESH (422)
1,407
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A318 L EE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,407
Additions INE 1,118
Amortisation B (177)
Currency translation differences HNEE A E 2 EE 105
Closing net book amount FREREFE 2,453
At 31 December 2017 7"2017%12H31H
Cost B AR 3,092
Accumulated amortisation Rt (639)
2,453
Intangible assets mainly consist of computer software. BEEEXZREEMIMME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14 BREE @)
Amortisation expense charged in the consolidated statement REGE2ERFRMBOEEZRN
of comprehensive income is as follows: TR :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LFE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Cost of revenue HER A 66 58
Administration expenses TR 111 91
177 149
15 INVENTORIES 15 FE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2017 AONNG]
20175 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Pharmaceuticals and medical s N B RN
consumables 6,305 2,072
Vision aid products R e B E @ 568 256
6,873 2,328
The cost of inventories and consumables recognised as REZE2017F12A31BIEFE - #R
expense and included in cost of revenue amounted to RERWG AHERANTE RFEM
approximately HK$39,773,000 (2016: HK$31,437,000) for X AN %) 439,773,000 7T (2016 F -
the year ended 31 December 2017. 31,437,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORIES

16 REHFISTHNEMTHE

As at 31 December
M2H31H

Loans and receivables
— Amount due from a director

ER &R

—ER—REERBRRA

2017

20174
HK$°000
FET

2016
20164
HK$'000
FAT

and shareholder - 16
— Amounts due from related parties — [ R 7 2R - 1,393
— Trade receivables — 8 WA 7,692 4,456
— Deposits and other receivables — iR M E M FE W RIS 8,529 6,338
— Pledged bank deposits —BHEMRITER 8,000 -
- Cash and cash equivalents —EeRRSZEEBY 77,969 58,760
102,190 129,723
Financial assets at fair value BAFER ABRN
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted insurance policy —FELTREKRE
investments - 5,205
— Structured bank deposits — EBIERITER 60 12,232
60 17,437
Other financial liabilities at REE S AT R Y
amortised cost Hit B &
- Amounts due to directors and —ENEERRRENRIA
shareholders - 10,510
— Amounts due to related parties — FEATRAEE 7 ZOE 153 10,375
— Trade payables —E G ENZIE 6,892 3,090
— Accruals and other payables —[ERTE A R E MR FIE 45,737 13,233
— Bank borrowings —IRITIER 8,000 11,144
— Finance lease liabilities —mEHERE 947 7,379
61,729 55,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

e RBRRME

17 EZEWFIE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000

Trade receivables E S EWGRIE

FET THETT
7,692 4,456

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

The trade receivables are due when services are rendered
and goods are sold. As at 31 December 2017, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables based on due date and
invoice date was as follows:

B EYFIANREEREE X FER

o

\

off

BORWRBEBRERRBEELESED
RED A EBRFE T © 722017412 A 31
B BEZEEGEZRIBABRESE
HEAMBRER D ATZAT

As at 31 December

#M12H31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0-90 days 0ZE90H 7,151 4,156
91-180 days 91%Z180H 234 71
Over 180 days HHBiE180H 307 229
7,692 4,456

As at 31 December 2017, all the trade receivables balances
were past due but not impaired (2016: same). These
relate to a number of independent clients, commercial
companies and local government to which no credit terms
were granted. Management considers that based on past
experience, the amounts can be recovered.

As at 31 December 2017, no trade receivables were
considered impaired and had been provided for (2016: nil).

R2017%12A318 © FiEE 5 IR
B A5 #4E 8 B R FE (2016 F « 4R
Fl) o ZEEBRAZEBLIES - %
NERMTRTER - ERERE
RIEBALS - ZEREAIKRE -

R20179612A318 @ HEZ 5 EIKK
B AR A IR E m a2 B (2016
&) o

EFHRE2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated

in the following currencies:

E 5 EWFEE )

15 8 U 0B IR (8 T b A T 5
HE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 5,986 3,322
Renminbi AR 1,706 1,134
7,692 4,456

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

18 e AARERAEME

e

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2017 AONNG]
20164
HK$'000
FAT

20174
HK$°000
FHET

Non-current FEENER
Prepayments for property, Y - E kB
plant and equipment TE A 3,152 1,738
Rental deposits Heke 7,657 4,129
10,809 5,867
Current ENHEA
Prepayments for inventories B FERIE 733 150
Prepayments for rental expenses ENHEEER 199 2,819
Listing costs EHEA 5,806 -
Rental and other deposits HekHMES 647 2,076
Others Hi 2,022 999
9,407 6,044
Total deposits, prepayments Be - BARER
and other receivables =G 20,216 11,911

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other

receivables approximate their fair values.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain

impaired assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
The Group does not hold collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

18

e RBRRME

BRE - AR
WFRIE @)

RBERH RXEERRALME
BRYGENATFE - ARELER
BEMERRIESER -

"R HAtb

BE - B HRIR R E AR KGR
EETIRATEEHE

ok

As at 31 December

M12A318
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 13,338 6,587
Renminbi AR 6,878 5,324
20,216 11,911

19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) DIRECTORS
AND SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from/(to) directors
and shareholders are unsecured, interest free, repayable on
demand and non-trade in nature (2016: same).

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/(to) directors
and shareholders approximate their fair values and are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

The amount due from a director and shareholder is not
impaired.

FEHR%E2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FRIE

20175128318 @ W (MES
MR REAEER 28 BRE
KEERIEEZIUHE (20165 - FHA) ©
M&z/ (MEERBREFAEBNERE
HEHE N EREILIAETTEHE -

e — 2 E = MR FIRL ARRIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) DIRECTORS
AND SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

19 Bl () EBRKRR

FRIE ()

Amounts due from/(to) directors and shareholders
outstanding were summarised as follows:

HEEREYR, (M) EERRERE
BT

138

At the
end
of year

REXR
HK$ 000
FERT

At the
beginning
of year
READ
HK$'000
THET

As at 31 December 2017 7A2017512H31H
Amount due from Bl —REER

a director and shareholder fRR IR
Dr. Dennis LAM FRIIEHA B8 - 16
Amounts due to directors FEfTE SRR

and shareholders =RIE
Dr. Dennis LAM I 858 = (3,175)
Ms. LI =4+ = (7,335)
As at 31 December 2016 7A2016512831H
Amount due from Bl —REER

a director and shareholder A& R IH
Dr. Dennis LAM RIS 16 33,795
Amounts due to directors FERE S KRR

and shareholders RIE
Dr. Dennis LAM I 2 (3,175) (93)
Ms. LI T+ (7,335) (4,822)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to a
bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$8,000,000 (2016: nil)
have been pledged to secure short term bank borrowings
(Note 26).

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less.

20

e RBRRME

CEARITERARRE
RBEEEY

B IFIRITFRIER I FIRITLAMG
BYFAEE—RBITHENTR -
778,000,000/ 7T (20164 : ) K
LAERS 52 BRSRITIE SN (PI3E26) -

ReLBRSSEMEEREBRA=
BAERARNRS LEHRHRTE

Eo
A °

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Cash at banks (Note (a)) RITIRE (3E) 66,896 34,644
Cash on hand FoEIRS 1,063 319
Short-term bank deposits (Note (b)) R ERIRTTE R (MI5E (b)) 10,010 23,797
77,969 58,760

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

Re MR EFEMRATERHE -

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000

THET

201745
HK$°000
FHExT

United States Dollar (Note (c)) Et(FiFEE) 37 23,343
Hong Kong Dollar BT 57,657 7,860
Renminbi (Note (c)) AR (BMi7E(c) 20,275 27,557

77,969 58,760
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

20 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

21

140

AN

Note:

(a)

(c)

D CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks generates interest at prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the effective interest rate per annum
on short-term bank deposits was 0.75% (2016: 4.0%); short-term
bank deposits have maturities at inception of less than 3 months.

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$17,468,000 (2016:
HK$50,623,000) were held in Mainland China as at 31 December
2017 and were subject to local exchange control regulations.
Those local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20 CHEARTERURRE

By

RESEEY @

fi -

i

(a) RITRENEE2017F12A3 B ILE
EEAFETZNT0.01%E0.35%
(20164 : 0.01%%0.35% ) KBTI M5
FRIRE -

(b) MR2017F 128318 BHEATERK
#E B F X B0.75% (2016 F :
4.0%)  FHERITIERE I EARR 20
3fER o

(c) R2017F12 A3 BAEFBEAHIFE R
BeMESESEYA17,4680007%8 T
(20164 : 50,623,000/ 7T) ° ZEH
EXEHINEERIERRR - Z2FEH
SNEE HIER 5 P BIE B & AR
#ll - MEEF ARG o

ﬁé$ﬁﬁlﬁ§%§@

S

As at 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Unlisted investments: JELTRE -
Key management insurance FEBEAEBRBEL
contract (Note (a)) (Kf#E(@) = 5,205
Structured bank deposits (Note (b)) BRI TE R (MIEED)) 60 12,232
60 17,437
Less: non-current portion: W FEBNERE S
Key management insurance contract ~ FEEIEAERBAL = (5,205)
Current portion BIEAER > 60 12,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

BAFEHITABEZNEH

S

Ew)

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000

THETT

201745
HK$°000
FET

At 1 January M1A1R 17,437 28,725
Addition NE 27,706 78,681

Disposal & (46,206) (89,736)
Change in fair value (Note 7) N EZE(HFE7) 681 595
Exchange difference PEH =% 442 (828)
At 31 December A12831H 60 17,437

Note:

(a)

(b)

Investment in insurance contract represented key management
life insurance policy. On 22 November 2014, Dr. Dennis LAM
transferred the insurance policy to the Group at a consideration of
HK$5,205,000. The insurance policy was pledged to the bank as
securities for certain bank borrowings and finance leases granted
to the Group (Note 26). As at 31 December 2016, the fair value
of unlisted insurance policy investment that was not traded in an
active market was considered to be the cash surrender value of the
insurance policy. The amount was denominated in United States
Dollar.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group invested
in structured bank deposits issued by major state-owned banks
in the PRC, with fixed maturities and floating interest rates. The
fair values of the structured bank deposits are based on the
redeemable amounts as at the year end date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

There are no commitment or contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. These financial assets are denominated in RMB and are
not impaired as at 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

MRE -

REAENEEREEEEABNTHRR
B o A2014F11 A228 » MIE#E £
1% (X (85,205,000 7T #5 (7 B #8 & T A
£E - RERAEEERNE TRITHE
AR EVEMR SRR QMM KR PR
(Pfif5E26) » 20164512 A31 8 - W4
REBRMSEBENIELMRERENA
FEERARENRRBESEE - %K
TAAZETTEHE ©

REZE20177F12A31BIEFE - A%
EEERPEEZEGRITETNGE
EE A RFE RO LB IERITE
o BEMSRTERO A FERER
FERBEHNTELRSETH -

RRERY  BEREERBRRRATE
FEAREN SR EENREE -

W RAEENE AT EF ABEOS
MEEFRMESFBANRESSAE
B ZESREENUAREE - B
R2017F12 431 A ER(E (20164 :
R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

22 SHARE CAPITAL

22 BRA

Number Nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZEREE ZEREE
‘000 HK$'000
T AT
Authorised: VERE ¢
Upon incorporation TARE AR S B (a) 50 387
At 31 December 2016 and 7201612 H31H
1 January 2017 20171818 50 387
Increase in authorised share KEREEE
capital by recapitalisation VETE BRI AN (b) 7,999,950 799,613
At 31 December 2017 #2017%128317 8,000,000 800,000
Issued and paid: BEITRAR
Upon incorporation EEM Ak Sz B (a) 2 16
At 31 December 2016 and 20165128311
1 January 2017 20171 A1H 2 16
Increase in number of BERERERNDEE
shares on recapitalisation #h0 (b) 154 -
Proceeds from shares issued mFEEEEGR A A
to C-MER Group Limited BTN M TS 308 (©) 178 17
Proceeds from shares issued M EXAFREER
to pre-IPO investors FEEBITRMAE  (d)and (e)
FT{S 3R (d) X (e) 37 4
At 31 December 2017 2017912 831H 371 37
Notes: N
(a) The Company was incorporated on 1 February 2016 with an (a) AARFR2016F2 A1 MK - &
authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000 ordinary 7 RR 72X /50,0005 7T+ 53 /550,000 A%
shares of US$1 each. Upon incorporation, 2,000 ordinary shares of BREEI1EZETHLBER - Nz
US$1 were issued at par. B - IRE(EE172,000R FREAET1ET
BEBAR o
(b) Pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 18 May 2017, (b) RIEMR2017F5 A 18 B BBRI M IRE

2 ANA F)E B 42 5% 8,000,000,000 %
FREME0NVETHN LB - HINEE
fi% 4800,000,0005% 7T » AR R EfE[E
Kt 2,000l BREEIETHNREE
BATIR - W MIAR R EE17156,000% &
IREE1ATHRNIEARIR - B
E{E 13T H) A TE IR 450,000 7T B 1%

the authorised share capital of the Company was increased by
HK$800,000,000 by the creation of 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each. The Company repurchased and cancelled the 2,000
existing issued shares of US$1 each and issued 156,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each to the shareholder in exchange. The authorised share
capital of US$50,000 of US$1 each was cancelled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(e)

Pursuant to directors’ resolutions passed on 18 May 2017 and 6
June 2017, 167,000 and 11,137 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each,
respectively, were issued and allotted to C-MER Group Limited at
par value.

On 30 May 2017, the Company entered into the Pre-IPO Tranche A
Subscription Agreements with certain investors (“Pre-IPO Tranche
A Investors”). A total of 14,851 ordinary shares (“Pre-IPO Tranche
A Shares) of HK$0.1 each were allotted and issued to the Pre-
IPO Tranch A Investors at an aggregated cash consideration of
HK$40,000,000.

Other than Mr. LAM Tak Kwan, who is a close family member of
a director and Dr. LAU Johnson Yiu-Nam, who is an independent
non-executive director of the Company, the remaining Pre-IPO
Tranche A Investors are independent third parties. All subscription
consideration has been received in cash.

On 6 June 2017, the Company entered into the Pre-IPO Tranche B
Subscription Agreements with certain investors (“Pre-IPO Tranche
B Corporate Investors”). A total of 22,277 ordinary shares ("Pre-
IPO Tranche B Shares) of HK$0.1 each were allotted and issued to
the Pre-IPO Tranche B Corporate Investors at an aggregated cash
consideration of HK$102,000,000.

All investors under the Pre-IPO Tranche B Subscription Agreements
are independent third parties. All subscription consideration has
been received in cash.

23 RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Other reserve

The balance represented the combined share capital
of the subsidiaries comprising the Group before the
completion of the Reorganisation, and contributed
surplus and merger reserve after completion of the
Reorganisation.

Statutory surplus reserve

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus
reserve. In accordance with articles of association
of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC, the
subsidiary is required to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards to the statutory reserve until the balance
reaches 0% of the registered share capital. Such
reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred and
to increase share capital.
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22 BRAR ()

fiEE - ()

23

(c)

RIER201745 7188 K2017F6 A6H
BRNEERZRR  AQRIKHERS
HEBAR A REITREEE167,0000%
K11,137 SR EEO. B TA L @A

MR201765A30H  RARHEETFHRE
H(EXRRARABEAAIREE )FTL
BRAFBEAARRERE - AAF]
MERAREERANIRE RIS R
TAEH14851REBREBEIATHYE
BR(TERRABEAMAIRNG]) - &
184X {8 540,000,000/ T °

BifEima s (—RERR) LER
FELE(RABMBILIFMITESR)I -
BRTHERARARENARBREED R
BUE=7 - MARBRECURES
FUER -

M2017F6 608 - AARIEETRE
H(BAAHABEHBIHEEREE])
I ERARBERBIRE T -

NRIABERNAFAEEABIEERES
B2 R B 1T A 22,277 B EE0.1
BB ([ERAFHEERBAL
%1) » #8334 RE%102,000,0007 7T °

HRAREENBAREEHER T M
BREEVRBUE=) - ARBR
EDARE 7 HUER

G

(a)

(b)

Hipf# e

ERBESREAREETHERR
REHETTARFTH) A FFRAS A R
BRI AR N A
=

EERBRFEE

ERBBRIBREERMRER -
R TR o BIRE M AR Sz B B B
RAMABEZAR - RS
RAARERDESTERRR
BV TR A E10% HHRATE R
R BEEEASREEMBRAR
50% &1E o ZEFEE A AR
B8 S DA AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

144

The Company has approved and adopted the pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 28 June
2017. Share options were granted in 2017 to incentify
the Company’s certain directors, senior management,
ophthalmologists, physicians, employees and consultants:

(i)

On 1 April 2017, 31,710,000 options were granted
to a total of 12 grantees, which include certain Hong
Kong ophthalmologists, selected physicians in the
PRC, an executive director and a senior management.
This represented 3.7% of the issued shares of the
Company after the completion of the proposed
capitalisation upon listing (Note 36(a)), if fully converted
to ordinary shares of the Company.

The options are vested over periods of one to three
years. The vesting of the pre-IPO share options
granted to the Hong Kong ophthalmologists is subject
to certain performance target in terms of revenue
generated during the vesting periods. No performance
condition exists for the selected physicians in the PRC,
executive director and senior management who shall
remain in their office or employment over the vesting
periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$0.1. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

On 1 April 2017, 10,012,000 options were granted
to a total of 115 grantees, which includes certain
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC, an executive
director and a senior management. This represented
1.2% of the issued shares of the Company after the
completion of the proposed capitalisation upon listing
(Note 36(a)), if fully converted to ordinary shares of the
Company.

The options are vested over a period of three
years. The grantees shall remain in their office or
employment over the vesting period under the service
condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$1.0. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise period or upon the
cessation of office or employment of the grantees.

On 1 April 2017, 1,856,000 options were granted to
four physicians in the PRC. This represented 0.2% of
the issued shares of the Company after the completion
of the proposed capitalisation upon listing (Note 36(a)),
if fully converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

The options are vested over periods of three to five
years. The grantees shall remain in their employment
over the vesting periods under the service condition
and fulfil certain performance target in terms of
revenue generated during the vesting periods.

The exercise price of each option is HK$1.0. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for periods
of three to five years. All unexercised pre-IPO share
options will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or
upon the cessation of employment of the grantees.
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(ii)

(iii)

H2017F4 818 @ M& #1155
ERABEETZEERF
B8  —RHTEER—EaR
EIRER B )X 110,012,000
BEARHE - Wi 2 SRR R B
BBANEEBE - (hEmigg
mANMETER (HFE36() B AR
AIEEITARIDA1.2% ©

BRERBHASE - AEAR
B 0 P IR R AR A e B £
SR -

BNERENTEERS1.08
T —EREB - BRETR=F
HAR RTTME « PR RITIEHE IR
NFBERBEERRITESR
AR AR IEERS R ER K
R o

MR2017F4 818 » AUEFEH
B8 4 1% 11 1,856,00017 BE AL & -
Wiz EBREBHEREEAR
A - (hETREREARL
e (FI5E36(a)) B AR A B 31T
HﬁfﬁE’UOQ% °

BRESBHA=ERF - AKX
NER 5B B A T BR AR
X WAERBEREMELS
WARETHERR -

BNERENTEER1.08
e —ERE BREAIR=Z
hFEHMERITE - A RITER
BRARMBE R BBERSNITE
HIR AR AR I HERE X R
KR e
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R BRI

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

146

(iv)

On 1 September 2017, 2,500,000 options were granted
to five consultants of the Group. This represented
0.3% of the issued shares of the Company after the
completion of the proposed capitalisation upon listing
(Note 36(a)), if fully converted to ordinary shares of the
Company.

The options are vested over periods of one to
three years. The vesting of the options is subject to
completion of service engagement by the grantees
during the vesting periods.

The exercise price of each option is HK$0.1. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise periods.

On 1 September 2017, 200,000 options were granted
to a Hong Kong ophthalmologists of the Group.
This represented 0.02% of the issued shares of
the Company after the completion of the proposed
capitalisation upon listing (Note 36(a)), if fully converted
to ordinary shares of the Company.

The options are vested over a period one year. The
vesting of the options is subject to certain performance
target in terms of revenue generated by the grantee
during the vesting period.

The exercise price of each option is HK$0.1. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise period.
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(iv)
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¥ o WS ERRETEHERAE
RRFERR - (h ETEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

On 1 September 2017, 121,000 options were granted
to two employees of the Group. This represented
0.01% of the issued shares of the Company after the
completion of the proposed capitalisation upon listing
(Note 36(a)), if fully converted to ordinary shares of the
Company.

The options are vested over a period of three years.
The grantees shall remain in their employment over
the vesting period under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$1.0. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise period.

On 16 October 2017, 366,000 options were granted to
an employee of the Group. This represented 0.04% of
the issued shares of the Company after the completion
of the proposed capitalisation upon listing (Note 36(a)),
if fully converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

The options are vested over periods of one to three
years. The grantee shall remain in employment over
the vesting periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$0.1. Once
vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of
three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options will
lapse by the end of the exercise periods.
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(vi)

(vii)

HR2017F9R1H » MMBARE
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iz SR RETHE R AARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the pre-IPO share options were calculated
using the binomial option pricing model and subject to a
number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation
of the model. The fair value of the pre-IPO share options
granted and the significant input to the model are
summarised as below:

24 RO AEEBRNSR @

BRARBENBRENAFEE
AoEAREEERLETAHELAR
mELZERREFZBEMNRS -
I HNERAFRESHBRENRD
FEREANEZHAZEHANT

2017
20175

Fair value of pre-IPO share options granted
(HK$'000)
Risk-free rate

Expected volatility TR 1R
Dividend yield R i
Expected option life (years) TEEASFHR(5F)

The expected volatility was determined based on the
historical volatility of the share prices of publicly listed
companies which are considered comparable with the
Group.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related average exercise prices are as follows:

FETHE
ATE(FET)
mERFIE

RN RIS BB AR

17,179
1.01-1.58%
47.31-53.15%
0.19-0.29%
4-8

FEHPR IR IR R AT AR (B AN SR B A &
HE AR LT AR RERE LK E
FEE °

4K AT (B ARAE L B R ARR 91T
EEOEBT

2017
20174
Average
exercise price
per share Number of

options

option

B ERE
TG
HK$ ‘000

A TT T4

JBRERE

At 1 January ®1A1H - =
Granted during the year FREEL 0.33 46,765
Forfeited during the year FRERK 1.00 (78)
At 31 December M12A31H 0.33 46,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

24 LIRHBAEBRNSR @)

FREARITE R BIAEE W B HRIT

following expiry dates and exercise prices: EEMT :
2017
20174
Exercise Number of
Grant date Expiry date price options
IERHE &% B 5 TfEE BREHE
HK$ ‘000
BT T4
1 April 2017 15 July 2021
2017%F4R1H 202147 H15H 0.1 10,570
1 April 2017 15 July 2022
2017%F4R1H 202247 H15H 0.1 10,570
1 April 2017 15 July 2023
2017%F4H1H 2023%F7H15H 0.1 10,570
1 April 2017 1 April 2023
2017%F4R1H 2023%F4A1H 1.0 11,048
1 April 2017 1 April 2027
2017%F4R1H 2027%4R1H 1.0 742
1 September 2017 1 November 2021
201749A1H 202111 H18 0.1 500
1 September 2017 1 November 2022
201749A1H 2022511 H18 0.1 500
1 September 2017 1 November 2023
201749A1H 202311 H18 0.1 500
1 September 2017 1 January 2022
201749A1H 202251 A1H 0.1 367
1 September 2017 1 January 2023
201749A1H 2023F1A1H 0.1 167
1 September 2017 1 January 2024
201749A1H 202451 A1H 0.1 166
1 September 2017 1 June 2022
2017%9H1H 202246 H1H 0.1 167
1 September 2017 1 June 2023
2017%9H1H 2023F6H1H 0.1 167
1 September 2017 1 June 2024
2017%9H1H 20246 H1H 0.1 166
1 September 2017 1 September 2023
2017%9H1H 2023F9H1H 1.0 121
16 October 2017 1 December 2021
20174108168 2021412 H18 0.1 122
16 October 2017 1 December 2022
20174108168 2022512 H18 0.1 122
16 October 2017 1 December 2023
20174108168 2023%F12H18 0.1 122
46,687
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R BRI

24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, all of the 46,687,000 outstanding
options were not exercisable as they have not yet been
vested. The total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on the pre-IPO share
options was HK$6,259,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017.

25 DIVIDENDS

Final dividend (Note (i)) REARR B (FTRE())
Dividends declared and paid to the
controlling shareholder (Note (i)

A% B (HI3EGI))

24 LI AERNSR s

R2017412 A318 » £ %646,687,000
19 18 AR T30 2 B S AL 10 oK 5 B 1 4
EITE - RELE2017F12A318 1E
FE - BEXARMAESAEREmR
GATHNRERABRNERRAEA
6,259,000/ 7T, °

25 RS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000
BT

20174
HK$°000
FET

EEIRMEMN FERBRS

100,000 46,500

Notes:

(i) At a meeting held on 28 March 2018, the directors do not
recommend the payment of the final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017.

(ii) Pursuant to a directors’ resolution dated 30 September 2017, the
Company declared a dividend of HK$100,000,000 to C-MER Group
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Such dividend
has been settled through cash and the current account with Dr.
Dennis LAM.

Pursuant to the written resolutions on 30 August 2016 and 31
August 2016, dividends of HK$36,500,000 and HK$10,000,000
were declared and were offset against the amount due from a
director and shareholder by Hong Kong (International) Eye Care
Group Limited and Hong Kong C-MER International Eye Care Group
(China) Limited, respectively.
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26 BORROWINGS 26 B

As at 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Non-current B

Finance lease liabilities MEHEARE 665 1,012

Current B

Bank borrowings RITER 8,000 11,144

Finance lease liabilities BmEHEAE 282 6,367
8,282 17,511

Total borrowings CEGEE 8,947 18,5623

(a) Borrowings (a) fERK
Borrowings are analysed as follows: fEROMTWT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2017 AONNG)
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Non-current IR E
Finance lease liabilities due for R—FEIHEENRE
repayment after one year HEAE 665 1,012
Current B
Portion of bank borrowings due for  $R{T{EF B S EEREE
repayment within one year which G2 —FE RN EEE
contains a repayment on demand # (Miik(a))
clauses (Note (a)) 8,000 4,464
Portion of bank borrowings due for  $R{T{EF B S EER(ES
repayment after one year which IGZ ) — 1L HAE B
contains a repayment on demand # (Misk(a))
clauses (Note (a)) - 6,680
Finance lease liabilities due for R—FRNEHEENRE
repayment within one year HEAE 282 6,367
8,282 17,511
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26 BORROWINGS (Continued)

152

(a)

Borrowings (Continued)

Note:

(a) According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole discretion,
a borrower shall classify the term loan as a current liability
in its balance sheet, as the borrower does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Accordingly,
the long-term portion of the Group's bank borrowings was
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowings are
secured by pledged bank deposits of the Group of
HK$8,000,000 (2016: nil) (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings were
secured by the Group's unlisted insurance policy
investments with surrender values of US$674,000
(Note 21) and personal guarantees provided by Dr.
Dennis LAM and Ms. LI, directors of the Company.
The personal guarantees provided by Dr. Dennis LAM
and Ms. LI has been released during the year ended
31 December 2017.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's
borrowings by type and currency is as follows:

26 BER@

(a)

CENE D

FE -

@ REFAREBIESRIFHRE
WEF - ERAEB S EERE
BRERZEHERNSE] B
HERBHMESEE 2
TEE R ([ eE]) - 67
BRS04 (R BT
PERF R RMIEESER - AIER
ANEREEEBBERANGEHRE
FHEAERBEE  REABXR
AR B BAREF A EEE
EMHRIFE ZRE SRS
+=@A o Eit + $K2017F12
A31H » REEBITERNE
HEIHPERGEAEERBERAD
AR EME (20165 : HHR) -

MR2017F12A31H8 » EB17fE
HUAEEERKFRTER
8,000,000/ T (20164 « 48 ) {E
FER(HIEE20) o

M2016F12 A31H » BITERK
RS BIRIR(EE A674,0003
TL(MIE21) RIFE ETIRERE K
RNAREBEEMIERELERT L
REAMEAERTAER - M
JEBEe A R T IR A A A B
REEBREHZE2017F128318
LIEFERRER -

AREFEROEDERENLE
ST

As at 31 December
M12H318
2017 2016
20164
HK$'000

THETT

201745
HK$’000
FET

Hong Kong Dollar at floating rates BT FENFE 8,000 17,085
Hong Kong Dollar at fixed rates BT BEERE 947 1,438
8,947 18,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

26 BORROWINGS (continued) 26 {ﬁ/TA
(a) Borrowings (Continued) (a) ERG
An analysis of the Group's effective interest rates per REENBRENESTOT -

annum is as follows:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164F
% %
% %
Hong Kong Dollar BT 217 3.25
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their EBERAREEREATEES -
fair values.
An analysis of the Group's undrawn borrowing facilities REERRERMERRE ST
is as follows: N

As at 31 December

R12A31AR
2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR
Floating rate SFENRR
— expiring within one year —R—FERZ|H - 4.696

EFHRE2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

26 BORROWINGS (continued) 26 {%%’ik(%%’:i)
(b) Finance lease liabilities (b) MEHEERE
The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the MAEEE HESE  BIEE
lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities by BEMEFNBEEEAEA -
the Group.

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Gross finance lease liabilities — MEHEBEEE
minimum lease payments —EAEMNR
No later than 1 year TER—F 305 6,504
Later than 1 year and no later —FRENERAF
than 5 years 686 1,056
991 7,560
Future finance charges REHENRRREEA
on finance leases (44) (181)
Present value of financial BmEEEEENERE
lease liabilities 947 7,379
The present value of finance REHESEN
lease liabilities is as follows: WEWMT :
No later than 1 year TER—F 282 6,367
Later than 1 year and no later —FEETERAT
than 5 years 665 1,012
947 7,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

26 BORROWINGS (Continued) 26 {%%k(%g)
(b) Finance lease liabilities (Continued) (b) MEHEEE®)
As at 31 December 2016, the finance lease liabilities MR2016F12A31H - gt B
were secured by the Group’s unlisted insurance policy EEEHEAEEEREBES
investments with surrender values of US$674,000 674,000 7T (FI5E21) A9 FE £
(Note 21) and personal guarantees provided by Dr. IREITE AN B EEHE SR
Dennis LAM and Ms. LI, directors of the Company. HERBFLZTIREOEAERTIA
The personal guarantees provided by Dr. Dennis LAM R - ARIERELE R LIR
and Ms. LI has been released during the year ended HREAEREEREZ2017F
31 December 2017. 12 A31H IEF SRR ©
27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 EZEFTER
The net movement on deferred income tax account is as IREFTSTIAR B &8 FsEm T ¢
follows:
Total
#ot
HK$'000
BT
At 1 January 2016 R20165FE1H18 (504)
Credited to the consolidated statement of SFAGAEETENER
comprehensive income 1,053
At 31 December 2016 "20165%£12H831H 549
Credited to the consolidated statement of SFAGZEEEWERR
comprehensive income 371
At 31 December 2017 2017512831 H 920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EZEMBH

FRELEHMESREE(BFE)EED

The gross movement in deferred income tax assets/

(liabilities) during the year, without taking into consideration BE) (R LA - E ERAR LSS
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is )T -
as follows:

Withholding  (Accelerated)/
tax on decelerated Share-based

unremitted tax payment
Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets earnings  depreciation reserve  Tax losses Total
AERER  (ME)/HE  UARGAEH
BEFES (BFR) /4E ijEEill REFE  WAERE HEER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT Ti5n BT Ti5n Ti5n
At 1 January 2016 M2016%1A1H (500) 4) - - (504)
Credited to the consolidated statement  :f A& 2EUER
of comprehensive income 500 156 - 397 1,063
At 31 December 2016 120165125318 - 152 - 397 549
(Charged)/Credited to the consolidated ~ H&A2EYHE
statement of comprehensive income ($18) /A - (237) %7 (339) 371
At 31 December 2017 M201712531H = (85) 947 58 920

156

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward purposes only to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
not recognised deferred income tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$1,584,500. As at 31 December
2017, the Group has not recognised deferred income tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$6,338,000
(2016: nil). These tax losses will expire within five years.

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$1,914,000 (2016: HK$813,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding taxation that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$38,287,000 (2016:
HK$16,264,000), as the directors considered that the timing
of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and the related temporary difference will not be
reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable future.
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REFBHREENEREENTHELB
BRER - W LA R AL B R R B ER AL F
HERBEABBHRERR - 12017
F12A318 - AEETEFRTHE
[E518 1,684,500 TLHERIEE TS E
E o R2017F12831H » AEEI £
PR 5T 18 E5 186,338,000 7T (2016
FE)IERELEMSHEE - ZEM
HEBERAFRER -

R2017612A318 - HREERA
A RIEE A EEARRE
AT REEE TR R REE
AW TR - AR5 Bl gt
(3 [ /8§ 2~ 5] oK BE 1 & F1 #738,287,000
7 70 (2016 4F : 16,264,0008 L) &
NOBEBNERERELHNSHEEY
1,914,000% 7T (2016 FF : 813,00075
TT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

28 TRADE PAYABLES 28 B EMNFIE
Trade payables, based on invoice date, were aged as REZHHZINE FENTIERR
follows: U

As at 31 December

M12H318

2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
0-30 days 0&30H 6,887 3,019
31-60 days 31THZE60H 4 46
61-90 days 61HZE90H 1 8
Over 90 days HRiE90H - 17
6,892 3,090

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in B RNRIBHERENRATE

the following currencies: EIRER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 AONNG]
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
Hong Kong Dollar BT 4,928 1,439
United States Dollar ETT 11 16
Renminbi AR 1,953 1,635
6,892 3,090
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their B o RNFIBMEREERAE QA TEMR
fair values. & e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 FEtERARHEMEMNRIE
As at 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET BT
Accruals for employee benefits EtETRANE 5,165 2,909
Accruals for operating expenses fEEHEIER 4,982 3,346
Accruals for listing expenses fEst EmEM 9,819 -
Payables for doctors’ consultation fees fEffR4 24 8,847 8,422
Receipts in advance TEWGRIR 2,894 1,232
Payables for property, ERZE - B K&
plant and equipment HEIIE 20,135 -
Others Hith 1,954 1,465
53,796 17,374
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are FEET B R R H Ath FE T SR IB R BRI B TD
denominated in the following currencies: BATE®HE -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Hong Kong Dollar BT 21,469 12,589
Renminbi AR 29,544 4,785
United States Dollar ETT 2,783 -
53,796 17,374
The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their H Ath fE T IR BREE 8 B N T EME
fair values. & e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 30 REREER

(a) Cash generated from operations (a)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash
generated from operations:

REXBHBRAS

BRPTS B RT AR AR 2R B PR 1S
ReFRNEk

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LFE
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Profit before income tax BR PR 1S 35 AT A1) 58,486 58,596
Adjustments for: BT SIEEL AR
Amortisation of intangible assets A E#Y 177 149
Depreciation of property, WE - BEREETE
plant and equipment 8,401 12,269
Losses/(gains) on disposal HEE - BRER
of property, plant and BEETEEES
equipment, net (M=) 558 63 (59)
Gains on financial assets at BATFERFAERES
fair value through profit or loss ERMEEEENWE (681) (595)
Share-based payment expenses VARG B ERE R R 2 6,259 -
Finance income 081 TN (877) (747)
Finance expenses [y lba 555 932
72,383 70,545
Changes in working capital: BEE L)
Inventories FE (4,406) (868)
Trade receivables B S EWEE (3,130) (1,056)
Deposits, prepayments and other e BENRER
receivables H b e RIE (2,681) (5,052)
Trade payables B SRR IE 3,666 662
Accruals and other payables FEtE R N EMENRIE 15,352 4,021
Balances with related parties ERRFHS 5 M A A 1,519 (94)
Cash generated from operations KRBTSR S 82,703 68,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

>

30 BEREER @

(b) HEMX - MERKEBRE

FIE

REEGRERERT  HEDY
X BERREBOREHREER
&

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Net book amounts BREFE 122 37
(Losses)/gains on disposal of LEWE - BEREE
property, plant and equipment, net Fif5 (E18), /W F 58 (63) 59
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HE®E  BER
plant and equipment BABFTS A 59 96

(c) Significant non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2017, share-
based payment expenses of HK$6,259,000 were
recognised (Note 24). Dividends of HK$100,000,000
were declared and HK$34,613,000 were offset against
amount due from a director and shareholder (Note 19).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, dividends
of HK$46,500,000 were declared and offset against
amount due from a director and shareholder (Note 19).

160
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(c) BEXFREXRS

REZE2017F12831HIEFE
HART - #5327 6,259,000 JT A
B0 B ET A 3R X (M 5
24) ° §%£.100,000,000/87LE F
FK » M34,613,0007 T2 K §4
B —REE RKEERIE (T
19) °

REE2016F12 831 B It F
& - BE IR E A46,500,0007
U0 WHEWR—REERBRER
B (M7E19) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 30 ReREa&r e
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) BEIBEENEEZHIER

financing activities

Liabilities from financing activities

RETDEENER

Amounts

due to

Finance Amount shareholders

Bank lease duetoa and
borrowings liabilities related party directors, net Total

wE Ef-8  EARRR
HTER HESE BEARE EZIERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2016 1201651718 20,563 12,747 3,735 - 37,045
Cash flows Bam (9,419) (5,368) 6,810 5,861 (2,116)
Qther non-cash movements VP3RS - - - 4,899 4,899
Exchange difference EREE - - (204) (266) (470)
At 31 December 2016 120165127318 11,144 7379 10,341 10,494 39,358
Cash flows Bei (3,144) 6,432) (10,719) (10,810) (31,105)
Exchange difference EHES - - 378 316 694
At 31 December 2017 #2017512A318 8,000 947 - - 8,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

31 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

(a)

31 AiE

BAESE

As at 31 December
M2H31H
2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FHT

Contracted but not provided for BRIAERFIE -
Property, plant and equipment R MR Ve B 9,523 3,475
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRE

The Group leases various clinics, hospitals, office
premises and staff quarters under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
between one and ten years, and the majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease
period at market rate. At 31 December 2017, the
Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AEERBETARBECEHER
FHELEDZAH - Bt - HAE
MERETIRE® - HENT—F
E+F - BRXZEHEHZENE
EHRAIETEER - K2017F
12A318 » REBRT A HEEL
EHREE THARRFEBEMNK
BEBINT -

As at 31 December

MA12831H

2017 2016

20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET BT

Not later than one year TEBRR—F 36,986 18,945
Later than one year and not —FERTERRSF

later than five years 62,313 16,316

Later than five years AFUE 42,787 -

142,086 35,261
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by C-MER Group Limited
(incorporated in the BVI), the ultimate holding company,
which owns 90% of the Company’'s shares as at 31
December 2017. The ultimate controlling party of the Group

R B RRME

32 BEAERS

W—TT BRE N EERKEEEN S —7
RS —IEM B R EERRAR
BEXFEN  MEIRASE M
T ZARZEGHHXZAREKRF
& S TMEE AR -

HR2017F12A31H » AEBEZHKIZE
BARHFEEGRAR(REBRRL
BEFMA) - EHEAEARA]
90% M fn o A& B W RARIERTT A

is Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI. JIESREE & N Z et o
Name of related parties Relationship with the Company
2k yakct BEANTWEE

C-MER Group Limited Ultimate holding company

HIHEEBR AT eS|

D&S Pharmaceutical Company Limited Common controlling shareholders and directors (Dr. Dennis
LAM and Ms. LI)

HEZERBRREEES(RIEREERTZT)

Common controlling shareholder (Dr. Dennis LAM) and
director (Ms. LI)

HENERBR (MIEFHEE) RES(FLT)

Common controlling shareholders (Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms.
LI) and director (Ms. LI)

D&S (Shenzhen) Biotechnology Limited HEIER R (NIBEE A R T4 ) MEE(FL L)

Project Vision Charitable Foundation Limited Common directors (Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI)

SREIREEESHRAT HRAEZESE(MIEHEERFTZT)

Asia-Pacific Academy Of Ophthalmology Common director (Dr. Dennis LAM)

EABBERAT

Maida Medical Software Development
(Shenzhen) Limited

BEERTHERECRYDBERAA

D&S (Shenzhen) Biotechnology Limited

Limited HEEF(MIEHEEE)
Asia-Pacific Academy of Ophthalmology
Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BRI

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32 BEEMAERZ @)

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (a) BEMITHOIRBENGSTBR

consolidated financial statements, the Group has the

following transactions with related parties: VE

= ASEERBTE TR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LFE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET BT
Ophthalmic services provided to Bk
a related company REREHRS
- Project Vision Charitable —SRBIREERS
Foundation Limited BRAA] 729 250
Management fee income from RE T EE AT
related companies BEEBIRA
— Asia-Pacific Academy of — Asia-Pacific Academy
Ophthalmology Limited of Ophthalmology
Limited 136 208
- Project Vision Charitable —SRBIREERS
Foundation Limited BR AR 480 480
1,345 938
Rental expense paid to A TEBARNEER
a related company
- Maida Medical Software —BEREREAE
Development (Shenzhen) CRINBRAT
Limited 9,045 8,943
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e RBRRME

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BHMARS @)

(@)  (Continued)
The management fee income is received for the
administrative services provided by the Group to
the related parties. The ophthalmic service income,
management fee income and rental expense were
determined based on the terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(b) Key management compensation

(a) (&)
BB U A T HE A 5 B ) R B
IREMITERE R RS mMUER - BR
BRI A ~ EBBWALEE
B THAR 5 AN 5= (B £ B B 7 KA
W E B IERETE ©

(b) E=EEEABHMH

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
Fees, wages, salaries, bonus we - IE - He - Te4 6,213 8,992

Retirement benefits costs - defined  iERIEFIA A

contribution scheme — G 52 45
Allowances and benefits in kind AL R B YR Ly 720
Share-based payments VARG (7 B RE A AT ER 2,550 -
9,556 9,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 B ARG @)

(¢) Year-end balances with related parties (c) EEEBEEAMNERERR

Year ended 31 December

HZE12H31BLLEE
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Amounts due from related parties:  FEUR B85 7108 -

Non-trade *ES
— D&S Pharmaceutical Company —EFREER NG
Limited - 373
- Maida Medical Software —EERREERE ORI
Development (Shenzhen) Limited BRAA] - 145
— D&S (Shenzhen) —D&S (Shenzhen)
Biotechnology Limited Biotechnology Limited = 667
— Asia-Pacific Academy of — Asia-Pacific Academy
Ophthalmology Limited of Ophthalmology
Limited - 208
- 1,393
Amounts due to related parties: JE{ST A 7 RkIE
Non-trade *ES
- Maida Medical Software —EEEEEERECRY])
Development (Shenzhen) Limited BR AR - 10,341
— Project Vision Charitable —SBEIREEES
Foundation Limited BR AR 153 34
153 10,375
The balances were unsecured, interest-free and BRAGHAEER  RERAR
repayable on demand and were denominated in EREER - WRATEEE

following currencies:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12HA31BLLEE
2017 2016

20174 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Amounts due from related parties FEUREIES 5 FIE

Hong Kong Dollar BT - 581
Renminbi AR - 812
- 1,393

Amounts due to related parties FE{BRE T FE
Renminbi AR 153 10,375
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REMBRRMEE

33 SUBSIDIARIES 33 MiEAHE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AT AR2017F12 A31 B EEHB

December 2017:

ATLE

Effective interest held

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued by the Company
establishment and share capital/ KRAfEERER Principal activities/
Company name kind of legal entity registered capital Directly Indirectly place of operation
ARER HMRL/ RIS R BRARA/ E# % TEER/
EEERER EERGEE EENY
C-MER Eye Care Medical Group The BYI, 2,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding,
Limited limited liability company US$2,000 HK
FERNBREEARAA RERUEE  BRELLA 2,000 E5R RERR
2,000%T 3
C-MER Eye Care Group Limited The BYI, 2,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding,
limited liability company US$2,000 HK
FRENEEERAT RERUEE  BRELLA 2,000 ER RERR
2,000 3
Hong Kong (International) Eye Care Hong Kong, 10,000 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of
Group Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 ophthalmic service,
HK
B (ER)BREEEEER AR B BREMAT 10,000 @k PRAERRRT -
10,0007 3
C-MER Vision Limited Hong Kong, 10,000 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding,
limited liability company HK$10,000 HK
FERNARAT B BREMAT 10,000 @k RERR
10,0007 3
Shenzhen C-MER Optical Trading The PRC, RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Sales of eyewear and eye
Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise care products,
the PRC
MIEERKESERAT hE - NEEALE AR%1,000,0007 HERGREBHERER
HE
Hong Kong C-MER International Hong Kong, 500,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of ophthalmic
Eye Care Group (China) Limited limited liability company HK$500,000 service,
HK
BARBERRNEEEE(PE) B BREMAT 500,000 Z @R FRAERRRT -
BRAH 500,000%7 3
Shenzhen C-MER Dennis Lam The PRC, RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Provision of ophthalmic
Eye Hospital Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign owned enterprise service,
the PRC
ANEBRESRNERERAR hE NEEALE AR%20,000,0007 RELRRIRS - R E
Shenzhen C-MER Hospital The PRC, RMB100,000 - 100% Inactive
Management Research Institute* ~ private non-enterprise entity
MImFEERE R RN hE NEEALE ARH100,0007T i)
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R BRI

33 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33 MBAR W)
Effective interest held
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued by the Company
establishment and share capital/ KT ERER Principal activities/
Company name kind of legal entity registered capital Directly Indirectly place of operation
AREH ERERL/ RIBER BRARA/ E# i TEEHR/
LRERER EERFEE EEBY
Beijing C-MER Dennis Lam The PRC, RMB20,000,000 - 100% Provision of
Eye Hospital Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise ophthalmic service,
the PRC
FRFEHERRNBRARAR hE NEEECE AR 20,000,000 RALRRIRS - R E
C-MER Hospital Management The PRC, RMB100,000 - 100% Inactive
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned enterprise
FBERER(RERAR hE - NEEACE ARE100,0007 5%
* English translation is for identification purpose only. The English * EXEREMEERR o ARNEP BIFMAK
names of the group companies incorporated in the PRC represent VHEBARWELNE AR - Hi
the best efforts by management of the Group in translating their XEBRAEBEEREREABNIRE
Chinese names as they do not have official English names. Ho A mEEmRK o
34 CONTINGENCIES 34 HBEEIE
The Group was involved in a lawsuit for an alleged medical N E A W R AR R AT R T EeE
negligence in pre-surgical treatment and post-surgical BB A& S — R o JAERE
treatment. The legal proceedings were commenced in FrrR20165F3 ARER o
March 2016.
Based on the advice from the legal advisers, management AREEERNER  BBEERAR
considers that it would be improbable for the plaintiff to ENAEREERDKINRE -

successfully pursue the claim for medical negligence.

As of the reporting date, no lawsuit provision has been RmEBH - AR AARATRERIER
made as the outflow of resources for this pending lawsuit REFABHAE R L - W E L
is not probable. The directors consider there is no legal A BEERA - BMEAMEER
proceedings that may have material impact on the Group's AR BRI NSRBI TS - BTSN &
business, financial conditions and operating results. KRB EEEAE o

168 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED %ISR @R AR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

e RBRRME

35 RAFRPEEEER

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R20175 20164
12H31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBATRIRE 58,169 57,648
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a director Rl —Z2EE N
and shareholder B& B FhIE - 16
Amount due from subsidiaries U B A A FE 71,633 -
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 5,853 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBSEEY 42,537 -
120,023 16
Total assets HMEE 178,192 57,664
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity EATIERERA
holders of the Company FEfhfER
Share capital A% A 37 16
Reserves e 161,252 57,576
Total equity MR 161,289 57,592
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries EARLEINGIE e 6,724 72
Accruals and other payables FERTE B K& E AT 708 10,179 -
Total liabilities Feb =R 16,903 72
Total equity and liabilities HERRAsE 178,192 57,664
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BRI

35 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 35 KXRTENEESEER®
(Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AATWEESE

Contributed  Share-based

Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (Note) reserve losses Total
BABH NRHAER
R EE (W)  WERGEE TR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 i HK$'000
BT TAL TATL BT BT
Asat 1 January 2016 R201651 418 - - - - -
Loss for the year EnER - - - 41) 41)
Completion of reorganisation TKER - 57,617 - - 57,617
As at 31 December 2016 20165124318 - 57,617 - 1) 57,576
Profit for the year FRFIE - - - 55,421 55,421
Proceeds from issuance of shares BIRGDAETE 141,996 - - - 141,996
Dividend paid B2ikea {20.000) - - (80,000) (100,000)
Share-based payment expenses (Note 24)  b(7 AEREA 5%
(HsEo4) - - 6,259 - 6,259
As at 31 December 2017 20175124318 121,996 57,617 6,259 (24,620) 161,252
Note: B3E
As part of the Reorganisation, the Company acquired interests in VEREARN—3D - ANA R AK)EHEE
subsidiaries and assets and liabilities related to the Business from ENFZ T UREEN B A RS R E T
Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. Li. As the Reorganisation is regarded as E¥BEEMNEERARE - HREMEWES
a continuance of the Business under the Operating Companies, no BEBAR ETEEHEE I ARY
fair value is applied to the acquired subsidiaries interest and assets FENINBARS A REERBE
and liabilities. The difference between the consideration paid to RAAYE - ENfESFEANRESR
the equity holder and the original investment of the equity holder is EHFEAANRREE ZENERENA
recorded as a contributed surplus. MAZR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

The events after the balance sheet date are disclosed as
follows:

(a)

Pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on 13
December 2017, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result of
the Listing, the directors were authorised to issue a
total of 802,628,735 shares by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$80,262,874 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company upon the
Listing. Such capitalisation issue has been completed
on 15 January 2018.

On 15 January 2018, the shares of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. In connection with the Listing,
the Company issued 197,000,000 shares at a price of
HK$2.9 each for a gross proceed of HK$571,300,000.

Pursuant to the International Underwriting Agreement
dated 11 January 2018, the Company granted the
over-allotment option to China Merchants Securities
(HK) Co., Limited, the international underwriter of the
global offering, in its discretion to require the Company
to allot and issue up to 29,550,000 additional shares.
The over-allotment option was fully exercised on
18 January 2018 and the Company issued a total of
29,550,000 additional shares at a price of HK$2.9 each
for a total gross proceed of HK$85,695,000 at the
closing date on 29 January 2018.

FEHR%E2017 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

R B RRME

36 “EBRER

HBERREBERENT

(b)

(c)

BIER2017F12 813 BEBEN
RERHR - FARBIRGDHE
BRA EMmMESHERE - 5
REBBERN B EMEERAR
AR RERNERE TS
80,262,874)%8 L 75 & A L5t 8%
77802,628, 736 i 17 - B E
AL EETER2018F1 A16H 7%
EJZ °

20181 H158 » KA R G
REBBARIHBERARE
REM - EmmME + AREE
BEREE29ETTHERETT
197,000,000 % & 1% + FT135IA
#A%E /571,300,000/8 T °

RIEBEA2018F1 A11HEE
BEHE®E  AREREIREE
MBI BEEBEES(B8)E
FRA R BRI - B
AT B B SRR B AL R E
175 % 29,550,000 % ZEHNIZ D ©
7H2018F 1 A18H » HBBERMK
EEEEEITE - MR20184F
1TH29EBMEIEEH - ARQFIE
RERmE298 TMEBIRIEET
29,550,000 BESNIED + FT1S 3K
A 44 %8 /85,695,000/8 T °
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
MBERHR

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the RNEBIRARRE R 2 LR R R T IO {E B
Group for the last four financial years, prepared on the basis as HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
set out herein, is set out below: N

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014
PIE:S 20164 20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT FHT THT
Results |

Revenue A 311,228 248,659 198,851 156,472
Gross profit S| 135,431 94,976 79,701 59,043
Profit for the year FERFIE 40,127 46,887 38,357 22,361
Adjusted net profit for the year&@ NS AR U R 02 64,287 46,887 38,357 22,361
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 43.5% 38.2% 40.1% 37.7%
Net profit margin (%) FEF2E (%) 12.9% 18.9% 19.3% 14.3%
Adjusted net profit margin (%)"M&2 A R (9 )RR 20.7% 18.9% 19.3% 14.3%

Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets EERE 233,377 128,642 132,375 102,817
Total liabilities BEeE 75,954 65,210 65,427 72,004
Total equity Rz faEE 157,423 63,432 66,948 30,813

Notes: B3

(1) Adjusted net profit is derived by adding listing expenses from the net (1) A REEF A B TR S BRAE E R AR hnEt
profit for the year. Hi5H -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that 2) UHEAREFTRUNMEBIERERMGEE
is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs and is 81 - BAEMBREENTERTE - THEAER
therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a REBPBMEEAZS] - Bt - ZFERB
measurement of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and [FERRERA N EEE8EIT o IR
should not be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any BEBVEMELEEGEEAEENPERIRD
other performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an FE o WWE D BRI IERREBY BRE
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the HRIE AL SR T SEETMEMRBENE
Group's liquidity. RIEEFEEEDHRSNEOENERREE

AEENRBESNIER -
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